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Independent Auditors' Report 

The Honorable Marlin N. Gasman 
Orleans Parish Sheriffs Office 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Orleans Parish Shenffs 
Office (the OfBce) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011^ which collectively comprise the 
Office's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Office's management Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements tmsed on our audit 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generaUy accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whedier the financial statements are 6-ee of material 
misstatement An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the ^gregate remainmg fund information of the Orleans Parish SherifiPs Office as of December 31, 
2011, and the respective changes m financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the 
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards^ we have also issued our report dated June 2i8, 2012, 
on our consideration of the Office's intemal control over fmancial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of thai testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our 
audit. 
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Accounting principles generally accepted m the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 17 and 63 throu^ 64, 
respectively, be presented to supplement the basic fmancial statements. Such infonnation, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placbg the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational^ economic, or historical context We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inqukies of management about the methods of prepaxing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency mlh management's responses to bur 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because 
the Ihnited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Office's basic financial statements as a whole. The combining and individual nonmajor 
fund financial statements, and comparative financial statements are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of State, Local Govemments and Non-Profit 
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic fmancial statements of the Office. The 
combining and individual nonmajor fimd financial statements, comparative financial statements and the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived fiom 
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and odier records used to prepare the financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

New Orleans, Louisiana 
June 28,2012 
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ORLEAaNS PARISH SHERIFFS OFFICE 
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND A>1ALYS1S (UNAUDITED) 

DECEMBER 31.2011 

Management's discussion and analysis of the Orleans Parish Sheriffs Office's (the Office) financial performance 
provides a nanative overview and anafysis of the Office's financial activities for Uie year ended December 31,2011. 
This discussion and analysis ^xmses on the current year's ending balances, activities, and resulting changes in 
comparistm wifib the prior year's inforraatian. The Office's financial perfonnance is discussed and analyzed wthm 
the context of the accompanying fmancial s^tements and disclosures following &is section. 

Pursuant to Act No. 621 of the 20«06 Louisiana Legislature, the offices of the Orleans Parish Civil Sheriff and the 
Orleans Parish Criminal Sheriff were combined May 3,2010. Louisiana Revised Stature 33:1500 states there shall 
be one Sheriff of the parish of Orleans effective the first Monday in May 2010 followmg the election. TTic offices of 
the Orleans Civil and Crimina! Sheriffs will be consolidated and the separate ofQces shall be abolished. The Sheriff 
shall have and shall exercise all powers, duties, and functions of the Civil Sheriff and the Criminal Sheriff of the 
parish of Orleans. The accompanying 2011 financial statements mclude twelve months of the combined operations 
of the former Orleans Parish Criminal Sheriffs Office and the former Orleans Parish Civil Sheriff. The 2010 
compamUve data is for the twelve months of operations of the former Orleans Parish Criminal Sheriffs OfSce and 
eight months (starting May 3, 2010) for the former Orleans Parish Civil Sheriff. Some amounts from 2010 have 
been reclassified to conform to the presentatioD of the 2011 financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HTGHLTGHTS 

Goveminent--Wlde 

The assets of the Office exceeded its liabilities at December 31,2011 by $159.8 million (presented as "net assets* .̂ 
Restricted balances are comprised of the follo\̂ 'ing: (I) capital assets, net of related debt, of S129.5 million, (2) 
assets for fiiture intergovernmental transfers of $12.3 million, (3) assets restricted for debt service of S20.5 million, 
and (4) assets restricted for capital improvements, net of related unexpended debt proceeds of SI.6 million. There 
are no unrestricted net assets on a govemment-wide basis available for operations but a deficit of $4.2 million. 

The Office's net assets at December 31, 2011 increased by $49.6 million, or a 45.1% increase over December 31, 
2010. The faicrease in net assets was primarily due to FBMA grant re\*cnues invested in capital assets. 

Fund Level 

At December 3I> 2011, the Office implememed GASB Statement No. S4-Fund Battmce Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, Under this new standard, fimd balance categories have changed fi'om prior 
years. At December 31, 20Il^dbe Office's governmental fimds reported combined eaidingfimd balances of $71.0 
miUioB, a decrease of S2,5 million firom the prior year. The General Fund's fund balance decreased by $1.5 million 
to a fimd balance of $2.5 million. The Capita] Projects Fund increased by $4.2 million to a fiond balance of $48.0 
milhon. The Debt Service Fund's fimd balance deo^sed by S4.4 million to a total fund balance of $20.5 million. 

The General Fund's unassigned fund balance decreased fiora $2.7 million to $1,1 million. 



ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OITICE 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

DECEMBER31.2011 

FINANCIAL HlGHLIGHTS-continued 

Capital Assets 

The Office continues with the reconstruction following Katrina's devastation and invested $55.0 million in capital 
additions primarily funded through FEMA fimds. 

Debt Administration 

General Obligation Bonds (Series 2011) for cs^ital improvements of $5.0 million wife an interest rate of 2.97% were 
issued pursuant to the $63.2 million authoriisition of October 4,2008 to issue general obligation bonds. 

2001 General Obligation bonds of $7.5 million with interest rates ranging fi-om 3.75% to 5% were retired early. 

The FASB Codification for Other Post-Employment Benefitŝ  reqmres the Office to account for the current costs of 
providing certain post-employment benefits to its retirees. An actuarial evaluaticm of the benefits disclosed an 
Unfimded OPEB Liabilic)' of $1 million at December 31,2011. This amount is included in long-term debt. To date, 
the Office has chosen not to fimd this liability. 

QVERVtEW OFTHE FIN'ANaAL STATEMENTS 

This Mana^gement's Discussion and Analysis document introduces Ae Office's basic financial statements. The basic 
financial statements include three c<Mnponents: (1) government-wide financial statements (accrual basis), (2) fund 
financial statements, and (3) notes to the basic financial statements. The Office also includes in this report additional 
information to supplement the basic financial statements. 

GOVERNMENT-WIPE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Office's annual report inchides two govemment-wide ftnanciai statements. These government-mde financiai 
statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Office's fmaaces, in a manner similar to a 
pri\'ate-sector business with its basis m accrual accounting and elimination or reclassification of activities between 
fimds. 

The first of Aese govemment-wide statements is ^ e Statement of Net Assets. This statement of position presents 
information that includes all of the OfBce's assets and liabilities, with the difference imported as net assets. Over 
time, increases and decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 
Office as a whole is improving or deteriorating. 

The second government-wide statement is fee Statement of Activities, which reports how the Office's net assets 
changed during the current year. All current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is 
received or paid. The primary purpose of these govemmemal activities is die custody of inmates and the serving of 
citations, summonses, subpoenas, notices and other processes for Civil and Criminal District Courts, the Courts of 
Appeals and the Si^reme Court. The bu$iness-tyi>e activity is die commissary operations. The govemment-wide 
financial statements are presented on pages 18 and 19. Exhibits "A" and "B" of this report. 

A fimd is a grouping of related accounts that is used to roaintam control over resources that have been segregated for 
specific acti\'ities or objectives. The Office like other slate and local governments uses fimd accounting to ensure 
and demonstrate compliance vidth fmance-related laws and regulations. Within the basic financial statements, fimd 
financial statements focus on the Office's most significant fiiods rather than the Office as a whole. 



ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OFFICE 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

DECEMBER3I.2011 

FUND FINANaAL STATEMENTS 

The OfSce's funds are clas^fied mto three categories: govemmental funds, proprietaiy' fimds, and fiduciary fimds as 
foUows: 

Governmental funds are reported in the fimd financial statements and encompass essentially the same function 
reported as govemmental activities in the govemment-wide fmancial statements. However, the focus is on the near-
term and may be useful in the evaluation of a goverament's near-tenn financing requirements. The focus is on 
inflows and outflows of spendable resotirces, as well as, on balances of spendable resources available at the end of 
the year. 

Since the government-wide focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between dicse two perspectives may 
provide useful insight into Ae long-term impact of short-term fmancing decisions. Reconciliations, between these 
two prospectives, are provided to facilitate this comparison. The reconciliation between the governmental fimds 
balance sheet and the statement of net assets is on page 21, Exhibit "D*. The reconciHation between the 
governmental fimds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fimd balances, and the statement of activities 
is on page 24, Exhibit'T". 

The basic govemmental f\md financial statement are presented on pages 20 and 22-23, Exhibiu " C and "E" of this 
report. 

Proprietary fiinds are reported in the fund financial statements and report non-major enterprise fimds (commissary 
operations and community service) and an internal service fimd (a self-insurance fimd). The basic proprietary fimd 
financial statements are presented on pages 25-27, Exhibits "G", "IT', and "I" of this report 

Fiduciary funds are reported m the fimd financial statements and report a defined contribution employee pension 
plan, and agency fimds including; individual ipnson inmate agency accounts and civil fiduciary accounts for assets 
held by the Sheriff as an agent for deposits held pending court action, Acti\'ities fiom fiduciary funds are not 
included in the govcrranwit-wide finaucial statements because the Office rannot use these assets for its operations. 
The basic fiduciary fimd financial statements are presented on pages 28 and 29, Exhibits **J" and "K" of this report 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FIWANCLO. STATEMENTS 

The accompanying notes to the fmancial statements provide infonnation essential to a fiill understanding of the 
govCTmmeai-wide and fimd fmancial statements. The notes to the fmancial statements begin on page 30 of this 
report. 

OTHER INFORMATION 

In addition to the basic financial statoraents and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required 
supplementary information concerning the Office's budget presentations. Budgetary comparison statements are 
included as 'tecjuired supplementary information" for the general fimd and debt service fund. These schedules 
demonstrate compliance with the Office's adopted original and final revised budgets. Required supplemental 
infonnation can be found on pages 63 and 64, Schedules "A-1" and "A-2" of this report. This report also includes as 
other supplementary information certain combining statements and statements with comparative data to prior years 
on pages 65-73. A single audit secdon, which includes a Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, begins on 
page 74. 



ORLEANS PARISH SHERff^'S OFFICE 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

DECEMBER3J. 2011 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The following table provides a summary of the Office's net assets: 

Summary of Net Assets 

Assets; 
UnrKtriccd currcnl and other 
Captial 

Total 

Li abilities: 
Current 
Long-term 

Total 

Kei Assets: 
Invested in capital assets^ 

net of related debt 
Resnricted for. 

Special revenue 
Debt service 
Capital Improvements 
Intergovemmental transfers 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Governmental Activities 
2011 

S 103,390,862 
146,772,304 
250.163.166 

35.914,799 
54.484,978 
90,399,777 

129.316,185 

o 

20,475,511 
1,649.490 

12,318,966 
(4.196,763) 

$ 159.763,389 

2010 

S 91,117,637 
97,134.505 

188^ .142 

18.928.739 
59.196.712 
78,125,451 

72,388,383 

768,197 
24,877,153 

691,989 
12.529334 
(1,128,387) 

S 110,126,691 

Buslness-typi 
2011 

$61,313 
-

61.313 

-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

61,313 
$61,313 

e Activities 
2010 

S 61.313 S 
-

61.313 

-
-
-

-

-
• 
-
-

61,313 
5 61,313 S 

Primary Government Totals 
2011 

: 103.452,175 S 
146.772,304 

250,224,479 

35,914,799 
54.484,978 
90399,777 

129,516,185 
-
. 

20,475,511 
1,649,490 

12,318,966 
(4,135;450) 

: 159,824,702 3 

2010 

1 91.178,950 
97.134.505 

188.313,455 

18,928,739 
59,196,712 
78,125.45! 

72388,385 
-

768,19? 
24,877,153 

691,989 
12,529,354 
(1.067.074) 

; 110.188.004 

As noted above the net assets of the Office increased by 45.1% ($159.8 mUUon compared to Si IQ.2 million). 

There were several significant changes in net assets. Investment in capital assets net of related debt increased from 
S72.4 million in 2010 to $129.5 miUion in 2011. This increase is primarily attributable to capital assets,acquired 
with FEMA funds. Thrae was also an esuly retirement of Series 2001 General Obligation bonds of S7.5 minion. 
Unrestricted net assets decreased from a d^cit of SI.I to a deficit of $42 million. This decrease in unrestricted net 
assets is attributable to operational expenses exceedhig revenues available to iimd expenses. Unrestricted net assets 
(deficits) are the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day operations widiout constraints established 
by debt covenants, enablbg l^slation, or other legal requirements. Prior year total net assets were not adjusted; 
however, approximately $ 8.5 million was moved from mvestment in capital asset, net of debt to unrestricted, due to 
a miscalculation of debt that was related to capital assets. Unrestricted for 2010 was changed from a $9.6 million 
deficit to a S!. 1 million deficit. 



ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
MAJ^AGEMEKT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

DECEMBER 31. 2011 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FTKANCIAL ANALYSIS-continued 

Approxunately 81% of the OfDce's net assets represent its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buUdmgs and 
improvements, maintenance equipment, office fumiture and equipment, vehicles, and construction in progress) less 
any related debt used to acquire those assets thai is stiD ouistandiog. The Office uses these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens and inmates; consequently, these assets are not available for fijture spoiding. Aldiough the 
Office's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it ^ould be noted that the resources needed to 
repay this debt must be provided from other resources, since capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate 
these liabilities. The investment in net capital assets has increased by SS7.1 million as the Office continues the 
replacement of capi^l assets damaged by Katrina. 

The restricted net assets include S20.5 million set aside to liquidate debt. The amount set aside to liquidate debt 
decreased by $4.4 million due primarily to the early retirement of general obligation bcmds noted abo\'e. Funds held 
for intergovenunental transfers (fimds for other governmental agencies for then- coital nnprovements) decreased 
\ . 1 % to S12.3 milHon. The Office cannot use these funds as they are restricted for other governmental agencies 
capital improvements. 

Unrestricted current and other assets increased by S12.3 million due prinnarily to the issue of an additional S5.0 
million of bonds for capital improvements and accelerated collection of grant fimds. 

Capital assets increased $49.6 as the rebuild of the campus continues following the devastation of Katrina. This 
consists of $65.9 million of additions net of depreciation of $4.2 million, and SI 1.1 million of disposals. 

Current liabilities have increased $16.9 million primarily due to large contracts and retainages payable for 
construction contracts, these construction related liabilities are being paid timely in accordance with contract tenns. 
Other current liabilities had no significant changes. 

Long term liabilities decreased by $4.7 million. This includes the issuance of S5.0 million of new bonds reduced by 
pÊ TneiWs on outstending general obUgatiqn bonds of $10.2 million. Accrued sick leave and other post employment 
benefits increased $.6 nuUion. Claims and judgments decreased by 5.2%. (S.2 million) 

The net ass«s of the Office's business-type activities had no change smce the S.6 million of profits from the 
commissary operations were transferred to the General Fund. 



ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
MANAGEMEKr S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

DECEMBER 31.2011 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS-continued 

The following table provides a summaiy of die Office's changes in net assets: 

^ Sumnaiy of Changes ln>^el Assets 
Govemmemal Activities 

i^cvcnp??; 
Program: 

Charges fat services 
Operating grants 
Capital grants 

General: 
Ad'valoreni taxes 
tnvestntent income 
Other 
FbisivenessofCDL 

proceeds 
Interfimd transfers 

T(M revenues and 
OrfKT 

^CE£M^ . . 
Program expenses: 

Custody of prisoners 
biterest 
Commiwai>' and other 

General: 
Loss en disposa! of 

austf 
Ttaasftts to other 

goventmental ngenciss 
Intetiuhd transfers 

Total expenses 
end other 

Ket increase 

Beginrung net assets 
Civil eifuity 
Ending net assets 

2QU 

S 52.509^41 
5,219.613 

62.603.917 

7,047.750 
I,&3?,874 
2.844.634 

-
635.991 

131.901,020 

68,802.761 
1.841.274 

-

11,094.051 

526,236 
-̂

82^64322 

49.636.698 

110,126.691 

-
S 159.763389 

2010 

S 50.936323 
7,900,163 

27.044,433 

7,092.471 
1.043,002 
3,287385 

20,298.173 
640314 

118.242.264 

72,225,064 
2,121,798 

-

78,192 

56,152 
-

74.481^06 

43.761,058 

62.743,694 
3.621^39 

$ nO.126,691 

Bmlnesa-type Activities 
2011 

.himary GQ\'emtnent Totals 

S 682,986 

682.986 

46.995 

635,991 
6&2.9S6 

6I3I3 

S 61313 

2010 

S 689,583 

* 

-

6S9,3S3 

49,269 

2011 

$ 53.192,227 
5,219,613 

62.603,917 

7.047,750 
1,039,874 
2.844.634 

635.991 

132.584.006 

68,802,761 
1.841,274 

.46,995 

2010 

5 51.625.906 
7.900.163 

27,044;433 

7,092,471 
l,()43.002 
3.287385 

20,298.373 
640314 

118.931,847 

72,225,064 
2.121,798 

49,269 

11,094.051 78,192 

640314 
689.583 

. 

61313 

4-ilill. 

526.236 
635.991 

82>47308 

49,636.698 

110.188.004 

$ 159.824.702 

56.152 
640314 

75.170.789 

43,761.058 

62,805.007 
3.621.939 

$ 110.188.004 



ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
MANAGEMENr S DISCUSSION AKD ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

PECEMgKR31.20U 

COVT^RNMENT-WniDE FINANCUL ANALYSIS-continued 

The Office is responsible for one of the core components ofthe local criminal justice system, wiiich is the operation 
of the Parish detention system. This responsibility includes providing for the care, custody, and control of subjects 
housed in detention fecilities, as well as, the processing of all individuals arrested within the City of New Orleans. 
Additionally, the Sheriff serves as the Executive Officer for the Orleans Parish Criminal District Coun and the Civil 
Disttict Courts, which includes the execution of all writs, orders, and processes Including warranto and subpoenas, 
execmes writs for judicial sales and disburses monies realized in accordance with laws, mandates, orders and 
judgments directed to him by the District Courts, the Courts of Appeals and the Supreme Court, as well as, providing 
security for the court system. Ancillary fimctions of die Office include, but are not limited to: law enforcement 
patrols, security services, the operation of search and rescue, mounted, K-9, motorcycle, and SWAT units, 
commuoity service programs, woik release programs, reentry, day reporting and mmate rehabilitation. 

Charges for services pre-Katrina for the Criminal Sheriff the year ended December 31, 2004 were $64.3 million and 
in 2011 are S52.5 million for the combined offices of the Civil and Criminal Sheriff offices. This is a significant 
decline in charges for services revenues since Katrina. Charges for services increased 3% in 2011 &om 2010. The 
Civil Division merger was mcluded for a full twelve months in 2011 compared to eight months for 2010. Civil 
generated approximately $9 million in 2011 and S6.1 million in 2010 of charges for services revenues, hi 20,11 the 
avwage number of prisoners decreased 7.4%; The prison population was approximately 6,000 inmates prior to 
Katrina. Following Katrina, there was a complete evacuation of al! inmates. By Febniaiy 2007, all evacuated 
inmates and other Orleans Parish inmates were back in the Office's custody. The average daily population has 
grown each year until 20U as follows: 2007-2,'n6. 2008-2,570, 20O9-3;2S4, 2010-3,431 and 2011-3,178. 
Comparing 2011 to 2010 arrested subjects are dov̂ n 28.1% however the length of stay has been increasing as arrests 
have decreased The length of stay increased in 2011 by 36.0%. 

Operating grants continue to decline from $7.9 million in 2010 to S5.2 million in 2011. Capital grants from FEMA 
contmue to increase as damaged buildings are rebuilt or repaired. Capital grants increased to $35.6 milh'on (131%) 
in2011. 

Ad valorem tax collections, investment income and other income had minimal decreases of less than 1% from 2010 
to20ll. 

In 2010 diere were two significant events that increased net assets by $20.7 million. Tlie mosl significant change in 
net assets in 2010 was the entire forgiveness of $18.0 million Special Community Disaster Loan and associated 
accumulated interest of S23 nultioxu The second was the merger of the two Sheriffs which increased net assets 
directl>' by S3.6 million and also decreased the operating deficit in 2010. 

In 2011 the OfHce continues with stringent cost cuaing measures including monitormg overtime and maintenance 
costs. During 2011 there was a 4.7% ($3.4 million) decrease in program expenses for custody of prisoners and other 
duties, "niis decrease in expenses is despite full year reporting of expenses for the Civil Division and other new 
programs started in 2010 of day reporting, reentry pmgram and electronic monitoring. Personnel costs decreased 
2.3% despite an employer's pension rate increase from 11% to 12%. Contractual services increased 3.5% primaril)' 
due to increased medical ffees, and technology related costs. Materials and supplies decreased 20.9% primarily in die 
maintenance department area. Depreciation decreased 16.7% due to the write off of assets for demoH^cd buildings. 

Interest expense decreased from $2.1 million to $1.8 million due to I) favorable rates on new issues, 2) forgiveness 
of CDL loan in 2010,3 ) early retirement ofthe 2001 General Obligation Bonds and 4) and the normal retirement of 
debt. 



ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

DECEMBER 31.2011 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCUL ANALYSIS-continued 

In 2011 there was a significant loss on disposal of assets. This $11.1 million loss is due to writing off assets in 
damaged buildings that were not written off in 2005 following Katrina. In 2005 an SI8 millioii estimate of the 
buiricatne xelated impairroent was calculated based on estimated restoration/repair cost convened to a historical cost 
using an index. Since 2005 a number of buildings that were expected to be repaired have been declared over 50% 
damaged and been demolished. Many of the items that have been written off were buildings and improvements 
which are depreciated over 40 years and therefore still had significant book value remaining. 

Businesis-type activities are the commissary sales to inmates. Operating income decreased slightly due to the 
decrease in average inmates. The commissary profits are transferted to the general fimd. The operation of the 
commissary has be&a outsourced since August 6.2O07. 

FtNANCLVL ANALYSIS OF THE OFFICE'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, die Office uses fimd accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance widi finance related legal 
requirements and to assist in the management of its budgetaiy operations. 

Goveroroeotal Funds 

The focus ofthe Officers governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances 
of spendable resources. Such mformalion is usefiU in assessmg the Office's financing requirements. In particular, 
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a govemment's net resources available for spending at the 
end ofthe fiscal year. 

As of December 31, 2011, the Office's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $71.0 
million. This Is a decrease of $2.5 miUioa or approximately a 3.4% decrease from the prior year. There is $1.1 
million in unassigned fimd balances which is avaihble for spending at the Office's disci^iion. Hie remainder ofthe 
fimd balance is nonspendable or restricted and is not available for new spendmg. There is $1 million of 
noiispendable fimds for prepaid expenses and inventoiy. The fimd balance is restricted for the followii^ 1) liquidate 
open purchase orders ($.5 million), 2) monies for fimnre capital projects for the Office ($35.7 million) and for other 
criminal justice agencies ($12.3 million). 3) monies collected to fimd debt ($20 J million). 

Major Govei'nmental Funds 

The General Fund is the Office's primary operating fimd and largest source of day-to-day service delivery. The 
Graieral Fund's fimd balance decreased by $1.5 million for an ending fimd balance of $2.5 miUion. 

Revenues for the General Fund increased by 38.5% ($36,3 million increase). The majority of this increase is 
attributable to Federal and state g^mts (primarily FEMA) which increased $35.3 million to a total from grants of 
$66.6 million. Other revenue increases were from Civil Division fees and commissions and security services which 
increased $2.4 million and $.5 million respectively. The Civil Division was merged into the Office effective May 3, 
2010. On an annualized basis the Civil Division revenues acnially had minimal decreases. Most of the other 
revenue accounts had small decreases except the state supplemental pay reimbursement which increased due to the 
Civil Division merger. Custody of inmates charges decreased 5.0% from $37.1 milUon in 2010 to S35.2 million in 
2011. Federal inmate charges had the greatest decrease from S1.8 million in 2010 to only $.9 million in 2011. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFPS OFFICE 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

DECEMBER 31.2011 

FINANCIAL A> ALVSIS OF THE OFFICE'S FUNDS-continued 

Opiating expenses for the General Fund, excluding capital outlay, debt retirement and interest decreased $3.4 
million. This 5.1% decrease is after consideration of an increase of S1.7 million for the Civil Division expenditures 
for the ftill year of inclusion in the fmancial statements. Expense reductions were primarily decreases in maintenance 
supplies and inmate food. A re\'enue anticqsation note was rolled over and had no impact on the General Fund's fimd 
balance. Capital outlays increased firom S27.7 million to $64.0 million as the recoveiy program is aggressively 
pursued. 

The General fund had a deficiency of revenues over expenditures of $7.0 million. This deficiency was partially 
offeet by a renewal of $4.0 million of revenue anticipation notes and a transfer of $1.5 million from odier funds. The 
net change in fimd balance was $1.5 million decrease. 

For 2011, General Fund Departmem fluctuations are explained as follows. Central Services decreased S.7 million 
(12%) due to reductions in personnel and professional services costs. Court Services had no significant change. 
Security services had a small decrease since increases due to the incKtsion ofthe Civil Division security serv'ices for 
a fijU year were offeet by reductions in personnel costs. Administrative Services increased S.6 million due to 
inclusion of the Civil Division for a full year. Records and Booking had no significant change. Inmate services 
decreased $.8 milhon (6.6%) due to reductions in personnel and mmate food costs. Grants and special programs 
costs increased due to tiiie mclusion ofthe Re entry and Day reporting programs for a fiill year of operations. Plant 
and maimenance costs declined $1.7 million (24%) in 2011 as stringent cost controls continue to be implemented. 

The other major governmental fimds are the Capital Projects Fund and the Debt Service Fund. 

The Capital Projects Fund's fund balance increased by $42 million due primarily to the issuance of $5.0 million of 
general obligation bonds. 

The Debt Service Fund's fund balance deceased by $4.4 million due primarily to the early retirement ofthe 2001 
General Obligation bonds. In July 2006, the Office and the State of Louisiana (the State) railered into a Cooperative 
Endeavor Agreement (the Agreement) whereby the State agreed to lend up to $17.3 million to tfje Office from State 
funds on deposit in the Debt Service Assistance Fund, authorized by the Gulf Opportunity Zone Act of 2006 and Act 
41 ofthe First Extraordinary Session of the Louisiana Legislature of 2006. This loan is to assist in payment of debt 
service requirements for 2006 to 2009 due to disruption of tax bases and revenue streams caused by Hurricanes 
Katrina and Rita. No principal or mterest is payable during the initial five year period ofthe loan. After the 
expiration of fhe initial five-year period, the loan bears interest at a fucedrate of 4.64 percent. The debt service fimd 
has accumulated fimds to be able to repay this loan. 

Proprietary Funds 

The Enterprise Fund (commissary fimd) transferred its operating profit to the General Fund. Operating profits of $.6 
million decreased by 1% from the previous year due to the 7.4% decrease in average daily population. 

The Intemal Service Fund (self-insurance fimd) is fimded by "premiums" paid by the General Fund for expected 
claims for general liability, property and casualty and environmental. Claim liabilities are reevaluated perioi^cally. 
During 2011, claim payments including legal fees were $2.3 million and during 2010 claim payments includmg l e ^ 
fees were $2.2 million. Based on claim experience and estimated liabilities the "premium" for 2011 increased to $2.3 
million from the previous year's $2.0 million. 

II 



ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION .VND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

DECEMBER 3 L 2011 

BUDGETARY fflGHLlGHTS 

The General Fund - llie 2011 General Fund budget was based on the expectation of a small increase in the overall 
mmate population. The population was a small decrease but the budget required adjustment as the mix of city, state 
£md federal inmates shified. The City inmate population declined but not as much as expected. The State mmate 
population had been expected to increase with the opening of a new temporary facility however the fecility was not 
completed until 2012 and the state inmate population decreased approximately 7%. The budget anticipated Federal 
mmates to be about the same however Federal iimiates decreased 39%. The Civil Division was expected to continue 
&e growth in fees that it had in 2010 however the civil fees and commissions were lower than expected in die 
original budget. Odier income which inchides some inmate related revenues was less than expected due to the 
decline in ava-age inmates. 

The largest adjustment on the 2011 budget was for Federal grants. FEMA revenues are on a reimbursement basis. 
When the budget was prepared tiiere was an expectation that construction on the inmate housing,'mtake processing 
ceater/adntinistrauve building would have some large initial costs. At the time the budget was amended contractor 
prepared cash flow projections were used. However the kitchea'warehoiise construction, temporary detention 
facility and the inmate housing%take processing center/administrative bialding have proceeded at a slower 
construction rate than projected by the contractors. 

For the budgeted expenses there were no major changes from the original budget and the final adopted budget The 
capital outlay was not as high as budgeted as explained above. The FEMA expenditure variance is moi« than the 
related revenue variance due to accelerated reimbursement recoveries in 2011 and recovery of retainage monies 
previously held by the state but vihxch are now being held by the OfQce. 

The Debt Serv̂ ice Fund - The 2011 budget was amended to refiect a reduction in investment income and a small 
increase in ad valorem taxes. The Budget was also adjusted to reflect the decision to early retire the 2001 general 
obligation bonds that had interest rates ranging from 2.75% to 5%. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The Office's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, as of December 31, 2011, was $146.8 
milUon. Additions to capital assets, primarily fimded through FEMA, were $65.9 million. Reductions in capital 
assets were S4^ million of depreciation and $11.1 million of other deductions for die book value of assets disposed 
ofdurii^theyear. 

Major capital events during 2011 include the following: 
• Start Construction on the Imnale Housing, Intake and Processing Center and Admmistrative Building 

Complex-5% completion 
• 70% completion ofthe KitchenAVarehouse.Ceniral Plant 
• Completion of Temporary Kitchen and Laundry modular units to replace the Tcmpleman Emeigency 

Kitchwi and to service fee new 500 bed temporary facility 
• 95% completion ofthe 500 bed temporary facility 
• Demolition of South White Detention Facility and Templeman Emragency Kitchen 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFHCE 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AKD ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

DECEMBER 3 K 2011 

the follo^ îng table provides a comparative summary of capital assets: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Depreciable assets: 

Buildings and improvcmMits 

Operating equipment 

FurnituTE and equipmsnt 

Vehicles 

Total depreciable assets 

Less accumulated depreciation _ 

Depreciable assets, net 

Total assets 

2011 
S 6,031,547 

100,057,224 

52,878,307 

2,572.438 

4,395,235 

8,390,033 

68,23«,013 

27.552,480 

40,683,533 

$ 146,772,304 

2010 
S 6,031,547 

37.876,690 

67.157.908 

2.909.352 

5,134,781 

8,047.767 

83.249,808 

30,023,540 

53^26,268 

$ 97,134,505 

c îange 
0.00% 

164.17% 

-21.26% 

-11.58% 

-14.40% 

4.25% 

-18.03% 

-8.23% 

-23.56% 

51,10% 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S QFHCE 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

DECEMBER 31. 2011 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATIQN-contlnued 

Long-Term Obligations 

At the end ofthe fiscal year, the OflEice had approximately S62.4 million in long-term obligations as sho\m in &e 
table below. 

General obligation bonds 

Go Zone (Cooperative Endeavor) 

Revenue Anticipation Notes 

Claims aod judgments 

Accrued sick and annual leave 

Post eroployment benefits 

Other 

20U 

$ 34,035,000 

17,256,120 

3.986,000 

3,940,789 

2.246.1 U 

909^05 

7.148 

S 62.380.473 

2010 

S 39,215.000 

17,256,120 

3^86,000 

4,157,789 

1,983,803 

621,852 

10.811 

$ 67,231.375 

Percentage 
change 

-13^1% 

0.00% 

0.00% 
-502% 
13J22% 

46:23% 

-33.88?'o 

-7.22% 

The long-term obligations ofthe Office decreased by 7.2%. The most significant decrease is the early retirement of 
the $7.5 million of Series 2001 G^ieral Obligation Bonds that had interest rates ranging from 3.75% to 5% and that 
were scheduled to mattn-e through March 1,2016. Significant increases include the 2011 S5,0 million issuance of 
general obligation bonds for cj^ital improvements at a 2.97% interest rate. A revenue anticipation note was 
renewed. Voters approved general obligation bonds of $63.2 million on October 4,2008. The cumulative issuances 
on these bonds are now $40.0 miUion. During 2011, the Office rehred $2.7 million of bonds in addition to the, early 
retirement of die 2001 General Obligation Bonds. Post employment benefits increased 46.2%. See Notes 9 and 17 
to the financial statements for additional informauon regarding long-tsm debt and the post cn^loyment benefit 
liability. In February 2010, the national rating agency, Standard & Poor's upgraded the bcmd rating ofthe OfBce's 
genera] obligation bonds approved in October 2008 to an "A" rating. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

Economic Factors 

The Metropolitan Report Volume 22, No. 3 published May 2012 by the Division of Business and Economic 
Research University of New Orleans covers the economic activity in the New Orleans medropolitan slatistjcal area 
which includes Jefiisrspn, Orleans, Plaquemines. St. Bernard, St. Charles, St. John the Baptist and St. Tammany 
Parishes. The report is areview ofthe first quarter of 2011 through the first quarter of 2012. Highlights ofthe report 
indicate that: "Enqjloyment in the New Orleans Metropolitan area decreased slightly over the year to 7.2% from 
7.5%. Unemployment in Nei** Orleans remains less than the national average. Industries with the sd-ongest 
emplo>Tnent gains in the New Orleans area over the past year include professional and business services and leisure 
and hospitality. Employment increased by 6.3% (4,300 jobs) in the professional 3md business sendees sector and by 
4.2 % (3,000 jobs) in the leisure and hosphality sector. The most substantial job losses in Ae New Orleans area 
occurred in construction (3,200 jobs), financial activities (1,400 jobs) and manufacturing of dansportation equipment 
(1,300 jobs). Over the last year, the New Orleans .Metropohtan Statistical Area population grew by .6% (8,000 new 
residents). Wi& approximately 1.2 million oxrrent residents, total population in the New Orleans metropolitan area 
stands at about 87.5% ofthe pre-Katrina population. 
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES-continued 

Operating Revenues 

Historically, the number of inmates housed at die detention facilities is the primary factor which impacts the gross 
revenue availabie to provide incarceration services to Inmates of the City of New Orieans (City), the Louisiana 
Department of Public Safety and Corrections (DOC), and the federal govemment (FEDS). The number of inmates 
held at die detention facilities at any given time is affected by the number of arrests made by law enforcement 
authorities and the length of stay which is affected by sentences imposed by the courts or the ability to make bond. 
Since Katrina, anodier major limiting factor is the number of beds available. The per diem paid to the Office to 
house these prisoners varies by type of inmate; whether it is a City inmate, sentenced or unsentenced, a DOC inmate 
or an inmate of the FEDS. The per diem rate for die City is based on a consent judgment in federal court. The per 
diem rate for DOC inmates is based on state statutes, and the per diem for die FEDS is based on negotiated connects. 

Pre-Kanina, die Office had approximately 7,500 beds. The average number of mmates per day in 2004 u-as 
approxunately 5,700. The average pet day for 2005 was approximately 6.000 inmates per day until Hurricane 
Katrina. At die end of 2010, a little over 3,500 beds were available. During 201! the S. White Detention Center 
was closed. In 2012 a new 500 bed ten^oraiy &cility has opened and the House of Detention has closed. Currently 
there are approximately 3,200 beds available. The City per diem has not been raised since July 1, 2003 and the 
Office is nying to have the Chy twlly fund the needs of the Office. The 2012 budget was prepared \»ith the 
expectation of increased funding. 

The Civil Division revenues are based upon various fees for services or SherifTs sales. There had been significant 
mcreases in 2010 and 2011 revenues but these increases have leveled olT and revenues are expected to be stable in 
2012. 

Operathig Expenditures 

The largest operational cost for die Office is personnel. The Office had approximately 1,200 employees pre-KaUrma. 
Following the storm, only a core group retumed. As fecilities canrie back on line, the Office brought back its 
personnel. Currently, the Office employs approximately 750 people, which includes the addition of the Civil 
Division of approximately 100 employees. In order to be competitive, and to retain and hire the personnel needed to 
staff the facilities, raises and salaty adjustments were made in prior years. During 2011 the Office aggressively 
monitored and reduced ovartimc pay. With the closing ofthe House of Detention in 2012 the Sheriffs Department 
adopted a state police schedule for security deputies. This schedule does not have any pre assigned overtime. This 
change in schedule reduced deputy salaries pay approximately 30% since there are reduced hours and hours worked 
are at straight time rates. Also in 2012 the OfTicc ceased matching deferred compensation payinents which will 
reduce personnel expenses approximately $1 million aEmualized. In 2012 the administrative staff and rank at major 
and above will take one fiirlou^ day m each two week pay period. The approximate cost saving in die personnel 
area is expected to be approximately $.5 milliori per mondi. Tliesc cost reduction strategies were implemented after 
the 2012 budget was prepared and the 2012 budget will bo amended to reflect diese changes. 

Due to Katrina damage, the Office is using dbe older less efSciently designed detention facilities. The new 500 bed 
teraporaiy facility has been designed to use fewer deputies per inmate. The House of Detention design was a facility 
that used a greater number of deputies per inmate. While the House of Detention is closed for inmates it continues to 
be used for administrative functions that were not provided for in the temporary facility. The savings in contractual 
and materials and supplies costs are expected to be negligible. 
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DECEMBERS!. 2011 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES-coptinoed 

Capital outlays are projected to increase to approxunately $110 million as the recoveiy pushes forward. The kitchen 
warehouse is scheduled for completion in mid 2012 and the inmate housing, intE^e and processing center and 
admmistrative building should be completed in mid 2014. 

Initial results for 2012 reflect that revenues are less than budgeted for inmate charges and Civil Division fees. 
Expenses for the first quarters are as budgeted but should decrease with the cost cutting measures implememed in the 
second quarter in the personnel area. 

Non Operating Revenues and Expenditures 

In post Katrina there are significant odier revenues and expenses, which impact the Office. State and federal grants 
related to the disasto* had a significant impact on 2005 and forward. FEMA total grants are expected to increase to 
over $300 million (current obligated funds exceed $290 miUion). Cumulative recognized FEMA accrual revenues 
are over $153 million at the end of 201L The additional FBMA revalues will be recognized as buildings and other 
reimbursable assets are repaired or replaced. 

The 2012 Budget has a S2.9 million operatmg profit however this budget was based on 3,400 average irmiates 
including and to date the average inmates is 3,000. This $2.9 million was offset agamst an expected deficit in fund 
balance for 2011. The 2011 expected deficit was avoided by the acceleration of FEMA reimbursements for 
retamage and the reduction in the time for FEMA reimbursement. The acceleration of revenues in 2011 will have a 
corresponding decrease in the 2012 year. 

Significant Factors 

The Office has been struck by severaJ hurricanes in the last six years, with the mosl recent beii^ Hurricane Gustav 
on September 1, 2008. The Office continues the rebuilding process. Though much progress has been made since 
Hurricane Katrma, a substantial amotint of work is still to be done. In order for the Of5ce to successfiilly operate in 
post-K^rina New Orleans, and to meet the needs of the criminal justice system, die following critical issues need to 
be addressed: (1) the completion of detention facilities that meet American Correctional Association standards (2) 
the restoration of our permanent kitchen production facility to adequately provide for the dietary needs of our 
increasing offender population; (3) rebuild a modem booking fecility that can effectively process intake and release 
volume; (4) recruit and retain qualified personnel; (5) pro\1de equipment for eir^loyees so the>' can complete their 
missions in a safe and effective manner, and (6) expedite the recoveiy and remediation process beftveen the City of 
New Orleans and FEMA. 

These critical issues are all being addressed, but many of them entail major capital projects that will take several 
years to complete. In the meantime, the Office continues to seek altemative fimding and to reduce the operational 
costs ofthe Office while continuing to provide the essential detention facilities, which are an integral, part ofthe 
criminal justice system ofthe Parish and are needed to protect the citizens of New Orleans. 
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CONTACTING THE OFHCE'S FLNANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview ofthe Office's finances, comply with fmance-related 
laws and regulations, and demoiistrate die Office's commititnent to public accountability. If you have any questions 
about this report or would like lo request additional finaicial information contact the Orleans Parish Sheriffs Office, 
2S00 Gravier Street, New Orleans, Louisiana 70119. The financial report is also available on the Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor's website at www.lla.la.gov under "Reports & Dam". 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OFFICE 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

Exhibit "A' 

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments inchidbg accrucxl interest 
IntergovenmiMital receivables 
Intemal balances 
Interfimd receiTObles 
Other receivables 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventories 
Capital assets, net of accimiulated depreciation 

Total assets 

Govemmental 
Activities 

S 26,077,582 
55,076,543 
19,566,802 

(61,313) 
803,209 

1,020,852 
42,450 

864,737 
146,772,304 

250.163.166 

BusinesS"Type 
Activities 

S - $ 
-
-

61,313 
-
.-
-
-
a 

61,313 

Total 

26,077,582 
55,076,543 
19,566.802 

1 . 

803,209 
1.020,852 

42,450 
864,737 

146,772304 

250,224.479 

LiABa^rrres: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued mterest 
Long4erm liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due after one year 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS (DEFICirS): 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for 

Debt service 
Capital improvements, net of related debt 
Intergovemmental transfers 

Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

27,188,122 
831.182 

7,895,495 
54,484,978 

90,399.777 

129.516.185 

20.475,511 
1,649,490 

12,318,966 
(4,196.763) 

s—w.mM? s 

-
-

-
-

-

m 

-
-

61,313 

fil3n | _ 

27,188,122 
831,182 

7,895,495 
54,484,978 

90.399,777 

129.516,185 

20,475.511 
1,649,490 

12,318,966 
(4,135,450) 

H9«?4 7fl? 

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of this statement 
IS 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FU^X)S BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
D T : C R M B E R 3 1 . 2 0 1 1 

Exhibit "D" 

Total fund balances for govemmemal funds at December?],2011 

Total net assets reporiKl for governmental activities in the statement of net assets is different because: 

Capital asssets used in «o\'emmentai activities are not financial resources and Qiercfore are not 
renorted in the funds. Those assets consist of: 

Land 
Construction in progress 
Bu])dinf;s and improvements, hd of £15,017,591 accumulated deprcciauon 
OpemtinK equipment, net of £1,455,322 aocumulated depreciation 
OfBce fimsiture and equipment, net of $3,903,721 oKumulated depreciation 
Vehicles, nei of $7,175,846 accumulated depreciaiion 

70,967,643 

6,031,547 
100.057,224 
37,860,716 
1,117,116 

491,514 
U14J87 

146,772304 

Deferred revenue - Under modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are not recognized unless they arc 
deemed **availahlê  to finance the expenditures of the current period. Accrual ba^s recogoiUon is not 
Hmited to availability, so cumulative deferred re%'enues must be recorded. 

Long-term liabilities applicable to the Office's governmental activiUes are not due and payable in the current 
period and accordingly are not rcpwted as fimd liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is rwt accrued in 
govemment funds, but rather is recognized as an expendihire when due. All [iahilicles (both current and 
long-term) arc reported in the statement of net assets. 

Accrued interest on bonds and notes 
Bonds and notes payable 
Bond premium, net of accumulated amortization 
Other post erapIo>ment benefits acoiial 

Accrued annual and sick leave, long-term portion 

1,279,308 

<S31,182) 
(55,277,120) 

(7,148) 

(909,305) 
< 2 ^ L U n 

(59,255,866) 

Total net assets of govonmieinal activities at December 31,2011 159,763389 

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit 'T ' 

ORJLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVEEINMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
DECEMBER 31. 2011 

Total net changes bi fund balances at Deconber 31,2011 per Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances $ (2,470,013) 

The chanee in net assets reported for Rovcmmental activities in the statement of activiti^ is diiTerem because: 

Governmental funds repat capital outlays ns expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those 
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the aanount by which 
capitaloutl£ysofS&4,929,064exceededdepreciationcxpcnscof$4,197514. 6073! 850 

Net book value of capital assets disposed during the year (11.094,051) 

New debt Issues provide current financial resources to govemmoital funds, but issuing debt incroascs long-term 
liabiUties in the statement of net assets. (8,986,000) 

Repayments of bond principal are reported as ftoancins uses in govemmentaj funds and thus conthbute to the 
reduction in fund balance. In the statement of net assets, however, repayment of debt decreases long-term liabilities 
and does not affect the statement of activities. 14,166,000 

Change in revenue accruals - Under modifinl accrual basis of accounting, revenues are not recognized unless they 
are deemed "available" to finance the oqjCDditurra of the current period. Accrual basis recognition is not limited to 
availability, so certain revenues not available for spending arc recognized in the current year. (1.872.779) 

Under the modified accrual basis of a«»unting used in the governmental funds, cocpenditures are not recognized for 
transactions that are not normally paid \vith expendable available financial resources. In the statement of activities, 
however, which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are rejxjrted regardless of when paid. In 
addition, interest on long-term debt is not recognized under the modified accrtJal basis of accounting until due, rather 
than as it accriies. 

Aroortizaidon of bond pretntum 
Accrued interest on bonds 
Accrued other post emplt^onent benefits 
Accrued armual and sick leave 

Special Items 

Total change innct assets at Deceipbcr31,2011 per Statement of Activities 

3,663 
(307,212) 
(287,453) 
(247i307) 

(838309) 

$ 49.636.698 

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of this statement 
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Exhibit " C 

ORLEANS PARISH SHERffFS OFBCE 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31.2011 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Interfimd receivables 
Restricted assets: 

Investments held in escrov/ 

Total current assets 

Clauns and judgments 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NETASSETS: 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

A?$ETS 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Enterprise Funds 
Non-Major 

S 61,313 

61,313 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

61,313 

$ 6ipi3 

Governmental 
Activities 

Internal 
Service Funds 

$ 3,938,000 

2,789 

3,940,789 

3,940.789 

3,940,789 

3.940,789 

$ 

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of this statement 
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Exhibit "H' 

ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OFHCE 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
f QR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2011 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Sales 

Less: cost of goods sold 

C^ras profit 

Insurance revenues 

Total operating revenues 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Enterprise Funds 
Non^Major 

Governmental 
Activities 

Intemal 
Service Funds 

682,986 $ 
(2,958) _ 

680,028 

680.028 

2;269.729 

2,269,729 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Legal services, claims and jtidgments 
Personnel costs 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

TRANSFERS: 
transfers out 

44.037 

44,037 

635,991 

(635,991) 

2,269,729 

239^729 

Change in net assets 

TOTAL NET ASSETS BECmNING 

TOTAL NET ASSETS. ENDING 

61,313 

61,313 $ 

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of this statement, 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OFFICE 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2011 

Exhibit "V 

CASH FLOWS FTIOM OPERATING ACTIVrnES: 
Cash received from inmates and customers 
Cash received for self-insurance prenuums 
Cash paid to suppliers 
Cash paid to employees 
Cash paid for legal services, claims, and judgments 

Net cash flows provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Cash paid to other ftmds 

Ket cash flows used in noncapital fmancing aaivities 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 

Ca* and cash equivalems, beguming 

Cash and cash equivalents, ending 

R£CQNCILL\TION OP OPERATING INCOME fLOSS> TO 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Operating income 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Business-Type 
Activities 

EnterprUe Funds 
NoB-Major 

S 682,986 S 

(2,958) 
(44,037) 

635,991 

(635,991) 

(635.991) 

Govemmental 
Activities 

Intemal 
Service Funds 

2,269,729 

(2J269,729> 

- s 

635.991 $ 

635,991 $ 
aammmmasm mtm 

The accompanying notes are an intergral pari of this statement 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31.2011 

Exhibit "J' 

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Interest receivable 
Interfund receivables 
Other receivables 
Deposits 
hvesiments 

Total assets 

$ 

Pension 
Trust 

9,097 S 
17,106 

• -

-
-

3.010,999 

3.03732 

Agency 
Funds 

3,937.541 
-

13,195 
21,682 
40,000 

m 

4,012,418 

LLIBILITIES: 
Due to inmates and others 
Advance payment on contibutions 
Interfund p ^ ^ l e s 

42,450 
3.196.014 

816,404 

Total liabilities 42,450 4,012.418 

KET ASSETS: 
Ket assets held m titist for pension benefits 2>994J52 

Total net assets 2,994,752 $ 

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of this statement 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
STATBAENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YF>AR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2011 

Exhibit "K" 

Pension 
Trust 

ADDITIONS: 
Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 

Total contributions 

Investment income 

Total investment iticome 

Total additions 

DEDUCTIONS: 

Trustee fees 

Benefits paid to participants 

Total deductions 

Change in net assets 

NET ASSETS. BEGINNWC 

NET ASSETS, ENDING 

s 131,548 
126,536 

258,084 

74,001 

74.001 

332.085 

23,834 
611,386 

635.220 

(303,135) 

3,297,887 

$ 2.994,752 

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of this statement 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OFFICE 
KOI^S TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PEc^mm?hm\ 

(I) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Orleans Parish Sheriffs Office (the Office) was created by the Louisiana Constitution of 1921, Article 
7, Section 89. 

The Sheriff is elected by qualified electors every four years. The Sheriff is in charge of the direction and 
supervision of all deputy sherifis who possess all ofthe powers and authority granted by law to the Sheriff. 

Among the powers of the Sheriff are the keeping of flte jaib, die preserx-ation of the peace and the 
appmhraision of disturbers ofthe peace and other public offenders. The Sheriff is the executive officer of 
the District Courts and has the authority to serve citations, summons, subpoenas, notices and other 
processes, and to execute writs, mandates, orders, and judgments directed to him by tfie District Courts. 

On July 28,1989. the Orieans Parish Law Enforcement District (the District) was created by Act No. 20 of 
the 1989 Second Esaraordinaiy Session ofthe Louisiana Legislature, which the Act amended Chapter 26 of 
Title 33 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes. TIIB Sheriff of the Parish of Orleans is the Chief Executive 
Officer of the District The purpose of the District is to provide 6nancing for the Sheriff through the 
levying and collection of tax millages. The proceeds of these tax revenues may be used to fimd the 
operations ofthe Sheriffs Office or fund the repayment of debt 

Louisiana Revised Statute 33:1500 provided there is one sheriff for the Parish of Orleans, effective the first 
Monday in May 2010 following the election. The offices ofthe Orleans Civil and Oiminal Sheriffs were 
consolidated and the separate ofSces were abolished. The Sheriff has and exercises all powers, duties, and 
fimctions ofthe former Civil and Crnninal sheriffs ofthe Parish of Orleans. 

Pursuant to Act No. 621 ofthe 2006 LcgisIaturCj the offices ofthe Orleans Parish CivD Sheriff (the Civil 
Sheriff) and the Orleans Parish Criminal Sheriff were abolished on May 2,2010 and the &tancial activities 
ofthe Civil Sheriff; as of May 2,2010, were consolidated with the fmancial activities ofthe former Office 
of Orleans Parish Oiminal Sheriff to create a single Sheriff for the Parish of Orleans (referred to as the 
Orieans Parish Sheriff). The newly created Orleans Parish Sheriff commenced on May 3, 2010. The 
accompanying financial statements, notes to the ffmmcial statements and other required supplementary 
information include the fonner Civil Sheriffs financial activities for the period May 3, 2010 through 
December 31,2011. 

Act 125 ofthe 2009 Legislature provided forthe Civil Sheriffs employees' continuing membership in the 
Louisiana Sheriff's Pension and Relief Fund for the health and life insurance plans in vvhich they were 
participating as of May 2. 2010. On May 3, 2010 the Civil Sheriff employees transferred to the newly 
created office of the Orleans Parish Sheriff. For the period prior to the d^e of consolidation on May 3, 
2010, the Civil Sheriff-served a four-year term, as pro>ided by Article V, Section 32 and R.S.33.1501.1 of 
the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. During the period prior to the consolidation, the Civil Sheriff was the 
Chief Executive Officer of the Civil District Courts of the Parish of Orleans and he served citations, 
summonses, subpoenas, notices and other processes and executes writs for judicial sales and disbtArses 
monies realized in accordance with laws, mandates, orders and judgments directed lo him by the District 
Courts, the Courts of Appeals and the Supreme Court. 



ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCUL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECENfBER3l.201l 

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOt^TlNG POLICIES 
(Continued^ 

Basis of Presentation 

The Office's financial statements are prepared in confonnity with generaUy accepted accoimting principles 
(GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP 
for state and local governments through pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). Governments 
are also required to follow the pronouncem^ts of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
issued through November 30, 19S9 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements. 

Although the Office has the opticm to apply FASB pronouncements issued after diat date to its business-
type activities and enteiprise ftmds, the Office has chosen not to do so. 

Reporting Entity 

The Orieans Parish Sheriffs Office is a "primary government*' as defined in GASB Section 2100 since the 
Office is a government, created by State stamte that has a separately elected governing bod^, is legally 
separate, and is fiscally independent of other stale or local govcrtunents. In evaluating how to define the 
government, for fmancial reporting purposes, management has considered ail potential component units. 
The decision to mclude a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying criteria set 
forth in generally accepted accounting principles. The basic, but not the only, criteria for including a 
potential component unit within the reporting entity is the goveming body's ability to exercise oversight 
responsibility. The most significant manifestation of tihis ability is fioiancial interdependency. OUier 
manifestations ofthe abOity to exercise oversight responsibility include, but arc not limited to, the selection 
of jgoveming authority, the designation of management, the ability to significantly influaice operations, and 
accountability for fiscal matters. A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the 
scope of public service. Application of this criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the 
government and/or its citizens, or whether the activity is conducted within the geographic botmdaries ofthe 
govemment and is generally available to its citizens. A third criterion used to evaluate potential component 
units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity is the existence of special fiMncial relationships, 
regardless of whetiier the government is able to exercise oversight responsibilities. Based upon the 
application of these criteria, the Orleans Parish Law Enforcement District is inchided (blended) within the 
reporting entity. 

Basic Financial Statements - Government-Wide Financial Statements {GWFS^ 

The Office's basic financial slatemeuis inchide both govemment-wide (reporting the Office as a whole) aod 
fund financial statements (reporting the Office's major fimds). Both the govemment-wide and fund 
financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type. The Office's 
inmate custody, civil division and related general administrative services are classified as govemmental 
activities. The Office's inmate commissary is classified as a business-type activity. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF»S OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEKTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31, 2011 

(1) XATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OP SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
fcontinued^ 

Basic Financial Statements - Government-Wide Financial Statements fGWFS) fcontinucd) 

In the goverament-wide Statwnent of Ket Assets (Exhibit A), both the governmental and business-type 
activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) are reported on a full 
accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-
term debt and obligations. The Office's net assets are reported in three parts - invested coital assets, net 
of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. The Office first utilizes restricted resources 
to fmance qualifying activities. 

The government-wide Statement of Activities (Exhibit B) reports bolii gross and net cost of each of tiie 
Office's fimctions (custody of Inmates and civil division) and business-type activities (inmate commissary 
operations). The net costs (by fiihction or business-type activity) arc normally covered by general revenue 
(investment income, etc.). The Statenient of Activities reduces gross expenses by related program revenues, 
operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function (custody of 
inmate arid civil division) or a business-type activity. Operating grants mclude operatmg-specific and 
discretionary grants, while the capital grant column ttfiecis capital-specific grants. 

The Office does not allocate indirect costs. 

The effect of interfimd transactioiu has been removed frcrm these statements. 

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability ofthe Office and the change io the Office's net 
assets resulting fixim current year's activities. 

Separate financial statements are provided for fiduciary fiinds; however, they are excluded from the 
govemment-wide financial statements. 

Basic Flnapcial Statements - Fond Financial Statements (FFS^ 

The financial transactions of the Office are reported in individual fimds in the fimd financial statements. 
Each fund is accounted fbrby providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, 
liabilities, reser\'es, fimd equity, revenues and expaiditures/expeases. The various fimds are reported by 
generic classification within tiie financial statements. 

The foUowing fimd types are used by the Office: 

Govemmental Funds: 

The fi>cus of the governmental funds' measurement (in the fimd statements) is upon determination of 
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of fmancial resources) 
rathCT than net income. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
NOTES TO FWAKCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER31.20II 

CD NATURE O F OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY O F SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(continued) 

Basic Financial Statemenb - Fund Financial Statemcnte fFFS> fcontmced) 

The following is a description of the major govemmemal funds of the Office: 

General Fund 

The General Fund is (he primary operating fund of tlie Office and it accounts for all financial resources, 
except tiiosc required to be accounted for in other funds. The General Fund is available for any purpose 
provided it is e^qpended or transferred in accordance with state and fedend laws and according to Office 
policy. 

Capital Projects Fund 

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities by the Distiict and the Office that areiiot financed by the General 
Fund. 

Tbe Debt Serwce Fund is used to account for the accmnularion of financial resources to be used for the 
periodic payment of principal and interest on general long-term debt including principal, mterest, and 
related costs ofthe District and the Office. 

Proprietary Funds: 

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net 
aissets, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are 
Ihose similar to businesses in the private sector. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nrai-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fimd's principal ongoing operations. Internal service fimds arc used by the Office to account 
for financing of goods or services provided by one department to other departments of tiie Office on a cost-
reimbursement basis. 

The following is a description ofthe proprietary funds ofthe Office: 

Enterprise Fvnds 

Enterprise fimds are required to be used to account for activities for which a fee is charged to external users 
for goods or services and tiie activit>' (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of net 
revenues, (b) has tiiird party requirements that die cost of providing services, including capital costs, be 
recovered with fees and charges, or (c) establishes fees and charges based upon a pricing policy designed to 
recover similar costs. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCLU. STATEMENTS (CONTTKUHD) 

DECEMBER 31. 2011 

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(continued) 

Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements (FFS) (continued) 

Internal Service Funds 

These fiinds are used to account for the financing of goods and services provided by an activity to other 
departments, funds or component units of die Office on a cost-reimbursemem basis. Operating expenses of 
die internal service fimd (self-iosuiance fimd) include the costs of claims and judgments, related 
administrative expenses, and premiums for commercial policies. All revenues and expenses not meeting 
this defmition are reponed as non-operating revenues and expense. 

Governmental Non-Maior Funds: 

jSpeciol Revenue Funds 

Special revenue fimds are used to account for aD revenue and expenditure sources audioriiied by a 
legislative body to be used for a specific purpose, llie non-major special revenue fimds consist of die 
scholarship fund, elderly victims fund and the benevolent fimd which were dissolved in the current year 
based on a release of restriction and transferred to the general fund. 

Fiduciary fimds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are not 
available to support Office programs. The reportii^ focus is on net assets and changes in net assets and are 
reported using accounting principles similar to proimetaiy fimds. 

The following is a dcscriptioii ofthe fiduciary funds of die Office: 

Pension Trust Fund 

The pension trust fund reports resources held in trust and the receipts, investments, and distribution of 
retirement contributions. The Office's pension tmst fimd is limited to tiie pension benefits offered through 
the defined contribution pension plan. 

Aeencv Funds 

The agaicy funds account for assets held by the Office as an agent for inmates and for deposits held 
pending court action. These fimds are custodial in namre (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve 
measurement of resuhs of operations. Consequentiy, the agency fimds have no measurement focus, but use 
the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Basis of Accounting 

Basis of acojunting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses arc recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the fiinancial statements. It relates to die timing of the measurements made 
regardless ofthe measurement focus applied. 
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(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOL^TING POLICIES 

(continued) 

Basis of Accounting fcontinned'fc: 

Accrual 

Bodj governmental and business-type activities in the govemment-wide financial statements and the 
proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are recognized when incurred. 

Modified Accrual 

The govemmental funds financial statements are presented on tiie modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accmal; i.e,, 
both measurable and available. "Available'' means collectible within the current period or within 60 days 
after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when 
the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule Is that prirtcipal and mterest on general 
obligation long-tenri debt, if any, is recognized when due. 

Revenues 

Substantially aU govemmental fimd revenues are accrued except for: revenues related to Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) grants wliich were not collected witMn 60 days of year end, 
cash advances on reimbursement grants, and ad valorem taxes not collected v îthin 60 days of year end. 

Investment mcome in proprietary funds, which finance current operations, are reported as non-operating 
revenue. 

The District's debt service fund receives ad valorem*'property taxes that have been levied on real property 
in Orleans Parish, Louisiana. Tlie taxes are collected by the City of New Orleans wvd then rcntitted to the 
Distria The taxes are levied by the City of New Orleans on the assessed value for all real property in 
Orleans Parish on January 1 st of the assessment year based upon the assessed value as of the prior August 
15th. Taxes are due and payable on January 1st, the date on which an enforceable Uen attaches on the 
property, and are delinquent on February 1st. 

The Office is authorized under state law to house inmates for Municipal, State, and Federal agencies. In 
accordance with contracts b^ween the Office and diese agencies, the Office bills the agencies a per diem 
amount for the housing of inmates. Other revenues of die Office consist of inmate telephone charges, 
grants, release processing fws, restitution administration fees, and a portion of bail bond fees. 

The Civil division's revenue includes: I) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directiy 
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function; 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meetiog the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. 
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DECEMBER 31.2011 

(1) NATURE OP OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(continued^ 

Expenditures 

Expenditures are recognized when the related fimd liability is incurred. 

The Office's primary expenditures hiclude salaries and related benefits. Capital expenditures and 
purchases of various operating supplies are regarded as expenttores al the time purchased 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Transfers bet>*'cen funds that are not expected to be repaid (and any other financing sotntd'use) are 
accounted for as ptiier financing sointes (uses). 

Deferred Revenues 

Deferred revenues arise when resources are received by the Office before it has a legal claim to tiiem, as 
when grant monies are received before the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. Deferred revenue is also 
recorded for FEMA receivables and ad valorem taxes recorded but not received widiin sixty days. In 
subsequent periods, when the Office has a legal claim to the resources, die liability for deferred revenue is 
removed fit^m the combined balance sheet and die revenue is recognized. 

Bndgcts 

The Office is required by state law to adopt annual budgets for the General Fund and Debt Service Fund. 
Each budget is presented on the modified accrual basis of accoimimg that is consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles. Budget amounts included in the accompanying financial statements refiect 
the originally adopted budget and all subsequent ansendments. 

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data refiected in the financial 
statexnents: 

1. Prior to December 1** the Office prepares a budget Cor the next succeeding fiscal year begiiming 
January I" The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of fmancing 
them. 

2. A public hewing is conducted, after proper official public notification, to obtain taxpayer 
comment 

3. Prior to December 15*** die budget is legally enacted throu^ passage ofa resolution by die Sheriff. 
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DECEMBER 31.2011 

0 ) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued) 

Cash and Cash Eonivalents 

Cash includes amouc^ on hand and in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, and time 
deposits. Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and thc^e investments with original maturities 
of 90 days or less. Under state law. the Office may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing 
demand deposits, or time deposits with state banks organized tinder Louisiana law or any other state ofthe 
United States, orimderdie laws of die United States. 

Investments 

Investments are limited by Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 33:2955 and the Office's investment policy. 
Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S,) 33:2955 authorizes the Office to invest in (1) direct obligations of the 
Unhed States Treasury*, die principal and interest of which are fiUly guaranteed by the federal goveriunent, 
(2) bonds, debentures, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal agencies or 
U.S. government instrumentalities, (3) direct security repurchase agreements of any federal book entry only 
securities, (4) time certificates of deposit of state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana and nation^ 
banks having then* principal offices in the state of Louisiana, savings accounts or shares of savings and loan 
associations, (5) mutual or trust fimd institutions, which are registered with die Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Securities Act of 1933 and the Investment Act of 1940, and which have underlying 
investments consisting solely of and limited to securities of the U.S. govenunent or its agencies, <»• (6) 
guaranteed investment contracts issued by a bank, financial uistitution, insurance company or other entity 
having one of the two highest short-term rating categories of either Standard & Poor*s C^orporation or 
Moody's Investors Service, provided diat no such inv'estment may be made except in connection widi a 
financial program approved by the State Bond Commission. 

Investments are stated at fair vahie as determined by quoted tnarket prices, except that short-term, highly 
liquid investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are shown at 
amortized cost. 

Short-Term Interfund Rcceivables/PavHbles 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual ftmds for goods provided 
or ser\'ices rendered. These receivables and pajj-ables are classified as due from other funds or due to other 
funds on the balance sheet. Short-term interfimd loans are classified as interfund receiv^les/payables. 
Interfund receivables and payables between fimds widiin govemmental activities are eliminated In the 
statement of net assets. Any residual balances outetanding between the governmental activities and 
business-type activities are rqported m the govemmenvwide financial statements as intemal balances. 

Inventories 

tevcntory in die General Fund consists of medical mid expendable supplies and food items held for 
consumption and are carried at weighted average cost. The vratghted average cost is recorded as an 
expenditure at the time of consumption. 
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NOTES TO FINAKCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

PEC;eMBER3L20U 

(1) NATURE OF 0PER.4TIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTLNG POLICIES 
fcontinued) 

Prepaid Items 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December 31,2011 are recorded as 
prepaid items in both govennment-wide and fund fmancial statements. 

Capital Aitsets 

(^pital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated cost if historical cost is not available. Donated 
assets are recorded as capital assets at tiieir estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The Office 
maintains a threshold level of $5,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets. 

Capital assets are recorded in the Statement of Net Assets, and depreciation is recorded in the Statement of 
Activities. Since surplus assets are sold for an immaterial amount when declared as no longer needed for 
public purposes, no salvage value is taken into consideration for depreciation purposes. All capital assets, 
other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following usefiil lives: 

Estimated 
Description Lives 

Buildings and improvements 40 years 
Maintenance equipment 7 years 
Office fumiture and equipment 5 years 
Vehicles 5 years 

Accrued Annual and Sick Leave 

Vacation (armual leave) and sick pay (sick leave) are accrued when earned. Accumulated annual leave and 
sick leave as of die end ofthe year is valued using employees* cuirent rates of pay, and the liability for 
these cdmj^nsated iabsences is recorded as a long-term liability in the govemment-wide financial 
statements. In the govemmental funds financial statements, only die current portion is accrued. 

Annual leave is accumulated until the employee retires, resigns, or is terminated. Effective January 1, 
2008, the maximum amount of annual leave that can be carried forward is 360 hours. Employees with 
more than 360 hours at January 1, 200S can carry tiiat amowtt forward, but cannot increase the amount 
carried forward. 

Long-Term Debt and Bond Piscounts/PremJums 

In the govemment-wide and proprietary fimd finaiicial statements, outstanding debt is reported as a 
liability. Bond issuance costs and bond discounts or premiums are capitalized and amortized/accreted over 
die tctins of die r^pective bonds using a method that apprcximates the effective interest mediqd. 

The governmental fund fmancial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other 
financing sources ofthe current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures. 
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NOTES TO FB ĴANCIAL STATEMEKTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31. 2011 

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
fcontinMed> 

Restricted Net Assets - Govemment Wide, ProDrietar>' and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 

Net assets are displayed in three components: 

1. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - consist of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstandmg balances of any borrowmgs 
that are attributable to the acquisition, constmction or improvement of those assets. 

2. Restricted net assets - net assets with constraints placed on the use either by (a) extemal groups such 
as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other govemments, or (b) law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

3. Unrestricted net assets - all other net assets diat do not meet the definition of ''restricted" or "invested 
in capital assets, net of related debt" 

Fund Balance 

In the govemmental fiiiid financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows: 

1. Nonspendjdsle fUnds -amounts tl»t cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or 
(b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact 

2. Restricted F^d balance - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the state or 
federal laws, or extemally imposed conditions by grantors, or citirens: 

3. Committed Fund Balance - aniounts tiiat can be used only for specific purposes determined by a 
formal action by the Sheriff or resolution; 

4. Assigned Fund Balance - mounts tiiat are constrained by tiie Sheriffs intent that diey will be used for 
specific purposes. Hie Sherifif is the only body amhorized to assign amounts for a specific purpose and 
is the highest level of decision-makbg. Therefore, amounts must be reported as committed. 

5. Unassigned Fund Balance - all amounts not inchided in other spendable classifications. 

The Sheriff considers restricted fund balances to be spent for governmental expenditures first when both 
restricted and unrestricted resources are avail^le. The Sheriflf also considers conmtitted fund balances to 
be spent fitst when other unrestricted fund balance classifications are available for use. 

Interfund Transactions 

Transactions fliat constitute rehnbursemems to a fimd for expenditures initially made fi^ra it that are 
properly applicable to another fimd are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions 
of ej^nditures in the fund that is reimbursed. Nonrecurring or non-routine permanent oransfers of equity 
are reported as residual equity transfers. All oihcr interfimd transactions are reported as transfers. 
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ORLEANS RUUSH SHERIFPS OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31.2011 

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued^ 

Receivables 

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where ^propriate, are reduced by die estimated 
portion diat is expected to be imcollectible. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statementsin conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America require management to make estiimates and assumptions tiiat aftect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the fmancial statements and the reported revenues, 
expenditures, and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ torn tiiose estimates. 

(2) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

At December 31,2011, die Office has cosh and cash equivalents (book balances) as follows: 

Demand deposits S 430,635 

Non-interest bearing demand deposits 5,578,849 
Interest-bearing demand deposits 24,004,331 
Cash on hand 10.405 

Total S ^Q»̂ 4.i?-̂ Q 

Reconciliation to Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets; 
Per Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents J 26,077,582 
Fiduciary Funds (not included in Goveniment-Wide 

Financial Statements): 
Agency Funds 3,937,541 
Penaipn Trust Fund 9.Q9? 

Total % 30.024^2?,n 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market Custodial credit risk is the risk diat in the 
event of a bank ^ilure, the govemment's deposits may not be renmied to it. Under state law, these 
deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or die pledge of 
securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of tiie pledged securities plus ±e federal 
deposit insurance miist at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent These securities are 
held in die name ofthe pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank tiiat is mutually acceptable 
to both parties. 

At December 31, 2011, the carr>-ing amount of tiie Office's demand deposits and certificates of deposit 
were $30,013,815, and die bank balances were $49,237,876. Of tiie bank balances, $1,500,000 was 
covered by TTie Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Hie FDIC provides insurance coverage 
only up to $250,000 for interest bearing accounts at each institution; m die event of a failure of an 
institution, the FDIC is not obligated to pay uninsured deposits. The FDIC has provided fbr unlimited 
coverage for non-interesi bearing and low-interest accounts through December 31,2012. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31.2011 

(2) CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTC fcontlnnedl 

Even though die pledged securities are considered uncollateralized under the provisions of GASB 
Statement 3. Louisiana R.S. 39:1229 hnposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and 
sell the pledged securities widim 10 days of being notified by the Office Uiot the fiscal agent has failed to 
pay deposited fbnds upon demand, 

(3) INVESTMENTS 

As of December 31,2011, the Office's investment balances were as follows: 

U.S. Treasury Obligatk>ns $ 
Federal Agency Obligations 
Money Market Funds 
Interest Receivable 

1.672.498 
34,511,998 
21^83,955 

Total 

Reconciliation to Govenunent-Wide Statement of Net Assets: 
Investments includmg accrued interest 

Per GovefmrieDt-Wide Statement of Net Assets 
Fiduciary Funds (not included in Govemment-Wide 
Financial Statements): 

Pension Trust, mcluding interest receivable 

S Sg im:64R 

55,076,543 

iilZLlM 

Interest Rate Risk 
^ sfi,in4„<wift 

Interest rate risk is die risk diat changes in nwrket interest rates will adversely affect die fair value of an 
mvestment Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater die sensitivity of its fair value 
to dianges in market interest rates. The Office has an investment policy that limits investment mattirities as 
a means of managing its exposure to fair vahie losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

As of December 31, 2011, the OfQce had the following investment t>'pes and maturities for investments 
subject to interest rate risk; 

Remaining Matioity (in Years) 

U.S. Treasmy Obligations 
Federal Agency Obligations 

Q^4ilRisk 

Fair Vahie 
$ 1,672,498 

34.153.622 

$ 35.826.120 

Less Than One 
$ 309,200 

19.614,400 

$ 19.923.600 

1-5 
$ 1.363,298 

14,539,222 

$ 15,902,520 

As of December 31, 2011, the Office's investments in Federal Agency Obligations were rated AAA by 
Moody's Investors Service. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Excluding investments issued or guaranteed by die U.S. Government, the Office has no investments in any 
single orgaiuzation that represent five percent or more of the Office's investments. 
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DECEMBER 31.2011 

(4) INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES 

The Office is authorized under state law to house inmates for Municipal, State, and Federal agencies. In 
accordance widi contracts between the Office and these agencies, the OfBce bills die agencies a per diem 
amount for the housing of inmates. 

Receivables at December 31,2011 are as follows: 

Custody of prisoners: 
CityofNcwOrleans S 3,378,693 
Federal AgKicies 112.691 
State of Louisiana 935.629 
Parishes 319.773 

4,746,786 
Other: 
FEMA Grants 14.787.932 
LCLE and odier grants 32.084 

The Office provides an allowance for uncollectible amounts that are based upon historical collection 
information, existing economic conditions, and odier relevant information. 

(5) INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 

The composition of interfimd balances at December 31,2011 is as follows: 

Receivable Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

Internal Service Fund 

Debt Service Funds 

AgMicy Fund 

Non-Major Enteiprise Funds 

Payable Fund 

Agency Funds 

Capital Projects 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Ftmd 

Fund 

$ 

S 

Amoimt 

816,404 

817.932 

3,938,000 

2,237,821 

13,195 

61,313 

7,884.665 

All of the remaining balances result fi^m tiie time lag between the dales that reimbursable expenditures 
occur, interfimd goods and services are provided, and payments between funds are made. Periodically, die 
Commissary Fund (a non-major Enterprise Fund) transfers its operating profits to die Cjeneral Fund. 
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DECEMBER31.5QU 

(5) INTERFUND RECEIVABLES. PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS-fcontinnedJ 

A summaiy of interfund transfers for the year ended December 31,2011 is as follows: 

(6) 

(7) 

Transfers Out: 
Capital Projects Fund 
Non-major Govemmental 
Non-major Enterprise Funds 

?JIEPAIPP?CPENSES 

$ 

$ 

Transfers In: 
General 

Fund 

149,435 
715.373 
635,991 

1.500,799 

Total 

S 149.435 
715,373 
635,991 

$ 1,500,799 

Paymetits made i»ior to December 31, 2011 diat will benefit periods beyond December 31. 2011 are 
recorded as prepaid expenses. Prepaid ei^enses at December 31,2011 consist of prepaid pension expense 
of$42,450. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended December 31,2011 are as follows: 

Capital assets not 
being depreciated: 
I^nd 
Constructibn in progress 

Total non-depreciable assets 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 
Operating equipment 
Office ftimiture and equipment 
Vehicles 

Total depreciable assets 

Totals 
1 

December 31, 
2010 

S 6.031,547 
37,876.690 

43,908.237 

67,157,908 
2,909,352 
5.134.781 
8.047,767 

83.249,808 

$ 127,158,045 

Additions 

S 
64,163.049 

64,163.049 

2.198,736 
4,670 

167,876 
377,248 

2,748,530 

$ 66,911.579 

Disposals 

S 
(1.982.515) 

(1,982.515) 

(16,478,337) 
(341,584) 
(907,422) 
(34,982) 

(17,762,325) 

S (19,744,840) 

December 31, 
2011 

$ 6,031,547 
100,057.224 

106,088,771 

52,878,307 
2,572.438 
4,395.235 
8,390.033 

68,236.013 

$ 174,324,784 
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DECEMBER31.2Q1I 

(7) CAPITAL ASSETS-fcontinuedl 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Buildings and im|ax)vement5 
Opiating equipment 
Office f\imiture and equipment 
Vehicles 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 

Capital assets, net 

December 31, 
2010 

S 17,689,646 $ 
1,395,450 
4,715,392 
6,223,052 

Additions 

2,804,120 
310,784 
94.534 

987,776 

Disposals 

$ (5,476,175) 
(250.912) 
(906.205) 
(34,982) 

December 31, 
2011 

$ 15,017.591 
1.455.322 
3.903.721 
7,175,846 

30,023,540 4.197.214 (g.^68,274) 27.552.480 

$ 97.134.505 S 62,714365 S (13,076,566) $ 146,772,304 

Depreciation expense m the amount of $4,197,214 was charged lo custod>' of inmates. 

The Office recognized a loss on disposal of assets primarily related to the disposal of the buildings and 
improvements that were damaged during Hurricane Katrina in August of 2005. At the time ofthe disaster 
die Office wrote off the portion of assets that were destroyed and considered to be unusable. The original 
intent of die Office was to restore and renovate die buildings to be used again. During fiscal year 2011, 
additional assets were written off as a disposal in the government-wide financial statements for buildings 
and improvements diat were demolisbed. 

The OfBce has active constmction projects as of December 31, 2011 totaling $100,057,224. Major 
continuing projects include the kitchen/warehousc'ceniral pbhi, die 500-bed temporary jail and the inmate 
housing intake and processing center and administrative building. Major cormnitments at December 31, 
20 H are approjdmately $160 million which wiU primarily be funded tiu-ougji FEMA grants. 

(8) PENSION PLANS 

The Oleans Parish Sheriffs Office provides pension benefits for substantially all of its employees through 
a defined contribution pension plan, a defmed benefit pension plan, and a deferred compensation plan. All 
eligible employees hired before July 1. 1997 were given the option to remain in the defined contribution 
pension plan or participate in a new defined benefit plan. All full-time eligible employees hired on July 1, 
1997 or thereafter, are required to participate in the new defined benefit plan. Part-time eir^loyees are 
reqiured to participate in die defined contribution pension plan at tiieir date of employment Employee 
participation in the deferred compensation plan is optional. 

(a) Defined Contribution Pension Plan 

In die defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to die Plan plus 
in\*estment eaminp. The Plan requires that bodi the employees and (he Office contribute to die 
plan. 
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DECEMBER 31.2011 

(8) PENSION PLANS-fcQntinued> 

(a) Defined Contribution Pension Plan-fcontinued) 

The OfBce contributes 9.8% of each participating employee's wages for those who are employed 
on the last day ofthe year or who have withdrawn during die year due to a minimum requtrt^ 
distributicm, retirement, disability or death. Participating employees are required to contribute 
9.8% of dieir wages. En^loyees may also make additional voluntary contributions to the Plan. 
Such additional amounts are not matched wholly or hi part by the Office. The maximum 
contribution an employee may make, which consists of both required and voluntary amounts, is 
19.8% of die employee's wages. Employees become partially vested in the OfQce's contributions 
(and earnings allocated to Che employee's account) after completing fbiû  years of s^vice. 

The vesting percentage mcreases annually until die employee completes eight >'ears of service at 
which time they become fiilly wsted. 

Forfeitures of unvested portions are available to the Office to reduce fiiture contributions. 

TheOfficemadecontributionsduringdieyearendedDecember3l,2011 ofS129,667. Forfeitures 
of $3,131 in2011 were credited to die baiefit ofthe en^)loyer for the year ended December 31, 
2011. The employees contributed to die Plan through payroll withholdings a total of $131,548 for 
the year ended December 31, 2011, which represents botii die required and additional voluntary 
conuibutions. 

(b) Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Effective luly 1.1997, die combined Offices* contributed to die Louisiana Sherifis* Pension and 
Relief Ftrad (die "System"), a cost-sharing multiple-cmplo>'er defined benefit public employee 
retirement s>'siem (PERS). The System is a statewide public retirement system for die benefit of 
sheriff and tiiefa- staffs, which is administCTed and controlled by a separate board of trustees. The 
System was estabUshed and provided for widiin LSA-RS 11:2171 of the Louisiana Revised 
Stamtes. 

Contributions of participating sherifls. togedier wfth shared local and state revenues, are pooled 
within die System to fimd accrued benefits. Both employer and employee contribution rates are 
approved by die Louisiana Legislature. The Systeih provides retirement and disability benefits, 
annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The 
System issues a publicly available financial report diat includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to die 
Louisiana Sherifife' Pension & Relief Fund, 1225 Nicholson Drive, Baton Rouge, Louisiana or by 
calling (225) 219-0500. 

bl addition to ad valorem and insurance premium taxes that are remitted to the System (which 
constitute die major fimdmg ofthe System), plan members are currentiy required by state statute 
to contribute 10% of gross salar>'. The Sheriff is required to contribute at an actuarially 
determined rate. The current en^loyer's rale b 12% of annual covered payroll for fiscal year 
2011. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

PECEWFR 31.2011 

PENSION PLANS-f continued^ 

(b) Defined Benefit Pension Plan fcontinuedl 

The contributions for die year ended December 31.2011 were as follows: 

A P > . P M . 
Employee 
Employer 

3.344,469 
4,094,335 

Percent of 
.Covered Payroll 

10% 
12% 

The Office's contributions to die System forthe years ended December 31,2010,2009, and 2008 
were $3,911,658, $3^200,965, and $3,192,321. respectively, which b equal to die required 
contribution for each year. 

(c) Deferred Compensation Plan 

EflEective September 1,2001, the OfQce adopted a deferred compensation plan administered by die 
Louisiana Deferred Compensation Commission. The Louisiana Public Employees Deferred 
Compensation Plan (die "Plan") was established pursuant to IRC Section 457 and Louisiana R.S. 
43:1301-1308. For 2011. die Plan allowed employees to coiitribute up to the lesser of $16,500 for 
emplo -̂ecs 49 years of £^e or younger, $22,000 for employees 50 years of age or older (533,000 
for diose eligible for calch-up) or 100% of dieir salary. The Office matches contributions up to die 
lesser of $16,500 (employees 49 years of age or younger) or $22,000 (employees 50 years of age 
or older) or $33,000 for diosc eligible for catch-up or 9.8% of each participant's salary. 
Employees contributed through payroll withholdings a total of 51,079.609 and the Olficc made 
matching contributions of $990,153 for the year raded December 31,2011. 

(9) LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

The following is a summary of die long-term obligation transactions for die year ended December 31, 
2011: 

General Obligation Bonds (Series 
2001): $27,000,000 originally bsued 
with interest rates ranging from 3.75% 
to 5.00%, maturing March 1,2002 
through March 1,2016, secured by 
collections of ad valorem taxes. 

General Obligation Bonds (Series 
2008): 510,000,000 originally issued 
with interest rates ranging fi"om 3.55% 
to 4.05%, maturing September 1,2009 
dirough September 1,2018, secured by 
collections of ad valorem taxes. 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2010 Additions Reductions 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2011 

Due 
Widiin 

One Year 

$7,490,000 $ (7,490,000) $ 

8,000,000 (1,000,000) 7,000,000 l.OOO.OOO 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31. 2011 

(9) LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS-(continued> 

Balance at 
December 31. 

2010 Additions Reductions 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2011 

Due 
Widun 

One Year 

General Obligation Bonds (Series 
2009): 510,000,000 originally issued 
with interest rates ranging fi'om 3.35% 
to 3.80%, maturing September 1,2010 
through September 1,2018, secured by 
collections of ad valorem taxes. 9,075,000 (970.000) 8.105.000 1.010,000 

General Obligation Bonds (Series 
2010): $15,000,000 originally issued 
with interest rates rangjng firom 3.0% to 
4.0%, maturing September 1,2011 throu^ 
September 1,2024, secured 
by collections of ad valorem taxes. 14,650^000 

General Obligation Bonds (Series 
2011): 55,000,000 originally issued 
with mt^est rates at 2.97 '̂o (interest 
payable beginning March 1,2012; 
principal payable beginning Scptrahber 1, 
2012), maturing September 1,2012 
dirougb September 1,2026, secured b>' 
collections of ad valorem taxes. 

Revenue Anticipation Notes (Series 2010): 
$6,000,000 originally issued with interest 
rate at 2.50%, matured in 2011, 
secured by revenues ofthe Office. 3,986,000 

(720,000) 13,930.000 760,000 

5,000,000 5.000.000 300,000 

(3,986,000) 

Revenue Anticipation Notes (Series 2011): 
$5,000,000 originally issued with interest 
rate at2.50%, maturing June 30.2012, 
secured by revenues ofthe OfBce. 

Cooperative Endeavor Agreement 
witii State of Louisiana: $17,256,120 
originally issued with an interest rate of 
4.64% (interest payable beginning 
January. 2012; principal payable 
beginning July, 2012), maturing July 15, 
2026, secured b>' revenues ofthe OfiSce. 

3.986.000 3.986,000 3,986.000 

17.256,120 17,256,120 821,602 

60,457.120 8,986,000 (14,166.000) 55;277.I2Q 7.877,602 



ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31. 2011 

(9) LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS^continned^ 

Odier liabilities: 

Claims and judgments 

Accmed annual and sick leave 

Other post emplo>'ment liabUities 
Bond premium, net of 

accumulated amortization 

Balance at 
Decembei:31, 

2010 

4.157,789 

1,983,803 

621.852 

10.811 

$67,231,375 

Additions 

2.126.960 

2.556,116 

425.713 

-

SH,0H7?9 

Reductions 

(2,343.960) 

(233.808) 

(138,260) 

(3,663). 

yi«i945,691) 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2011 

3.940.789 

2,246.111 

909,305 

7,148 

$62,380.47-. 

Due 
, Widim 

One Year 

-

15,000 

-

2,893 

$7,895:495 

In May 2011, the Office renewed its Series 2010 revenue anticipation note with an original issue date of 
April 29, 2010. The Series 2011 revenue anticipation note has a principal amount of $5,000,000 and an 
annual interest rale of 2.50%. Ttie maturity date of this note is June 30,2012. 

Followmg is a maturity summary of bond and note principal and interest expense; 

YMff Ending Principal Interest Total 

2012 $ 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

2017-2024 

$ 

7.877.602 $ 
3,994,724 
4,134.615 
4,281,358 
4.435.037 

30.553,784 

55.277,120 $ 

2,060.402 $ 
1,859.973 
1,708,239 
1,544.452 
1,373.451 
5,695.754 

14,242,271 S 

9,938,004 
5.854.697 
5,842.854 
5,825,810 
5.808.488 

36.249,538 

69.519,391 

Interest expense on long-term debt for the year ended December 31,2011 was 51,841,274. 

In July 2006, the Office and die State of Louisiana (the State) entered into a Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement whereby die State agreed to lend up to 517,256,120 torn State fiinds on deposit in the Debt 
Service Assistance Fund, audiorized by die Gulf Opportunit>' Zone Act of 2005 and Act 41 of the First 
Extraordhiary Session of die Louisiana Legislature of 2006, to assist in payment of debt service 
requirements from 2O06 through 2009 due to dismption of tax bases and revenue streams caused by 
Hurricanes Katrina and Rita. No principal or interest was payable during the initial five year period of die 
loan. After die o^iration ofthe initial five year period, die loan shall bear interest at a fixed rate of 4.64%. 
Principal payments on die bonds begin in July 2012 and die loan will mature in July 2026. Interest is 
payable semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 begmnmg January 2012. The loan may be prepaid 
without penalty or premium. The Office has the right to request one extension of its obligation to begin 
paymaits under die loan not to exceed five years. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED'̂  

DECEMBER 31. 2011 

(9) LONG-TERM DEBT OBUGATIONS-^continned) 

On Febmaiy 15. 2001, die District issued $27,000,000 of General Obligation Bonds (Series 2001). for 
repairing, renovating, improving, and constructing facilities for die Orleans Parish Sheriffs Office. District 
Attorney, District Courts, Cleik of District Court, Juvenile Court, and Municipal and TyafCc Court. One 
half, or S13.5 million, was allocated to governmental agencies otfier than die Office. 

The status ofthe fimcls allocated to the odier agencies is as fallows: 

Aeencv 

Orleans Parish District Attorney $ 
Orleans Parish District Courts 
Orleans Parish Clerk of 

District Courts 
Orieans Parish Juvenile Court 
Orieans Parish Munic^al and Traffic Court „ 

Restricted for intergovemmental transfers S« 

Origmal 
Balance 

2,500,000 
8,500,000 

800,(K)0 
1,000,000 

700,000 

13,500,000 

Transferred 
toother 
Agencies . 

$ 1,173.357 
1,201,536 

320,112 
5,085 

700.000 

s^AmftSQ 

Estimated 
Interest 
Eamed 

$ 410.936 
1,397,184 

131,500 
164475 

\i^m 

f 2Ai?m 

Remaining 
Balance at 

December 31, 
2011 

$ 1.737,579 
8,695.648 

611,388 
1.159.290 

115.061 

$ 12.318.966 

On October 4, 2008. the voters ofthe Orleans Parish authorized die District to issue general obligation 
bonds not exceeding 563,225,000 for constmcting. improving, renovating and repairing jails and other 
feclllties for die Sheriff ($40,890,000), District Attorney ($3,290,000), Cleric of District Court 
($2,825,000), Juvenile Court ($3,720,OOOX Municipal and Traffic Court ($7,500.000X and New Orleans 
Forensic Center ($5,000,000). The 20-year bonds are payable from ad valorem taxes. There have been 
four emissions of die bonds; $10,000,000 was issued December I, 2008 and a second $10,000,000 was 
issued March 1,2009 and $15,000,000 was issued March 1,2010 and $5,000,000 was issued December 2, 
2011. 

(10) F^ND^A^A^^;E; 

tjot in spendable form - This amount represents prepaid insurance expense and inventor)'. 

Restricted - The general fimd includes amounts restricted for encumbrances. Thei capital projects fund 
includes $35,864,490 restricted for capital improvements and 512,318,966 restricted for intergovenmiental 
transfers (see fobmote 9). The debt service fimd includes amounts restricted for debt sa^ce. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFHCE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31. 2011 

(]]) RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Orleans Parish Sheriffs Office manages its risks intemally and sets aside assets for claim settlements 
in its internal service fund, die Self Insurance Fund. The fund services claims for various risks of loss to 
which die Office is exposed, including general liability, property and casualty, and envirotunejital. The 
OfBce has limited commercial insurance on some heavy equipment and buses. The Office also has 
physical damage policies for selected vehicles. The Office has some flood and property policies. The City 
of New Orleans provides workmen's con^nsation coverage. 

Self Insurance Fund liabilities are reported when it is probable diat a loss has occurred and die amount of 
that loss can be reasonably esthnated. Claims liabilities depend on such complex factors as inflation, 
chaises in legal doctrines, and damage awards. Claims Uabilities are reevahiated periodically to take into 
consideration recently settled claims, the frequency of claims, and other economic and social factors. The 
estimate for claims liability mcludes an estimate for incurred but not reported (IBNR) liabilities and also 
includes amounts for selected incremental claim adjustment expenses related to specific claims and other 
claim adjustment expenses regardless of whedier allocated to specific claims. Attomey fees are recorded as 
incurred and are not mcluded in die liability. Estimated recoveries, for example, from saK-age or 
subrog^on, are anodier component ofthe claims liability estimate. 

The Orleans Parish Sberifi*s Oftice is a defendant in various lawsuits pertaining to material matters. As of 
£>ecember 31,2011, on the advice of legal counsel, 53,940,789 has been accrued in the Self Insurance Fund 
to fimd outstanding claims. Chaises in the balances of claims liabilities during the last two years were as 
follows: 

(12) 

Fiscal Year 
2010 
2011 

ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS 

Liability at 
Beguming 

$ 4.322,789 
$ 4,157.789 

Current-Year 
Claims and 
Changes in 
Estimate^ 

$ 2,009.515 
$ 2.126,960 

Claim 
Payjnepts 

$ 2,174.425 
$ 2.343,960 

Liability at 
End 

S 4,157,789 
S 3,940.789 

The accompanying basic financial statements do not include certain pordons ofthe Office's expenses paid 
directly by the City of New Orleans. These expenses include certain building space, utilities, office 
supplies, gasoline and certain major repairs if any among others. 

Hospitaliation premiums, unemployment benefits, and workers' compensation premiums paid by the Cit>' 
of New Orleans on behalf of the Office totaled $4,880,915 and are included in the accompanying fmancial 
statements as revenues and expenditures in the General Fund. The recorded hospitdization includes die 
postemployment benefit of health insurance to prior Criminal Sheriff retirees who either have thirty years 
of service; are a member of the Louisiana Sheriffs Pension Sc Relief Fund and retire with 20 years of 
service at 50 years of age or older; or are a member of die Orleans Parish Sheriff's Employees Retirement 
Plan widi eight years of service and 55 years of age or older. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31.20n 

(13) COMPENSATION OF SHERIFF 

In accordance widi Louisiana Revised Statute 33:1421, the Sheriff of Orleans Parish was paid the following 
compensation for preserving the peace, arresting public offenders, and keeping ofthe jail. He is also die 
executive officer ofthe District 

Salary $ 148,544 
Expense allowance $ 14.854 

(H) ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 

The Office derives a material part of its revenues from per diem charges for the housing of federal, slate, 
and municipal prisoners. These revenues are received from the City of New Orieans, other Parishes, the 
Stale of Louisiana Depanment of Corrections and various Federal agencies. For the year ended December 
31,2011, revenues from tiiese sources totaled 535.216,162. 

(15) CONTINGENCIES 

Litigation 

The Office is a defendant m various lawsuits. As discussed in note 11, the Office is self-insured widi 
respect to claims. The Office and its attorneys have,reviewed these claims and lawsuits in order to evaluate 
the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome and to provide as estimate of its exposure to potential loss. This 
estimate could change in the near terai due to die litigation environment. 

Intergovernmental Assistance 

Hie Office participates in certain local, state and f^eral fmancial assistance programs. Amounts received 
frctto grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally die federal 
govemment. Any disallowed claims, inchiding amounts already collected, may constitute a liability. The 
amount, if any of expenditures that may be disallowed by tiie grantor cannot be determined at diis time, 
although die Office expects die amount, if any. to be immaterial. 

The Office of Inspector General - OIG has issued reports questioning FEMA's fimding of $6,290,431 of 
coste relating to certain grants from 2005 tiuougii 201} related to hurricane Katrina. Of die total questioned 
amounts approximately $2.9 million have been resolved as of December 31, 2011. No amounts have been 
accrued related to the remaindw of the questioned costs as die ultimate outcome of diis matter is 
undetermined at this time. The Office is not in agreement widi die OIG*s findings. As of December 31, 
2011 the Sheriffs office and die legal counsel are certam tiiat the remaining items will be resolved. 

(16) NATLTUL DISASTER, 

On August 29, 2005, Hurricane Katrina, a major hurricane, strack southeastern Louisiana and die 
Mississippi and Alabama Gulf Coast. The Office incurred significant hurricane-related expenses and 
property losses. As of December 31, 2011. die Office has received reimbursements from die Federal 
Emergency Management Association (FEMA) of 5140,021,110. 
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PECBMP^R3l,?QU 

(16) NATURAL DISASTER fcontinucd> 

Inchided in accounts receivable at December 31, 2011 is $13,512,530 of reimbursements from FEMA 
received widiin 60 day's after December 31,2011 and $1^279,308 of additional accruals related to FEMA. 
Of diese amounts £l»279r308 of reimbui^ements were deferred at die fund level and recog;nized as revenue 
at the goveniment*wide level. Unob^ated FBMA grants, which are awaiting final approval and are 
expected to be reimbursed for $1,164,202 of recorded expenditures, are not recorded *m accounts 
receivable. Ad>'ances and receipts for unrecorded expenses of $1,481,547 are recorded as a payable to the 
Sute of Louisiana, die pass dirough ^ency for FEMA funds. FEMA obligated grants total $218,428,788 
at December 31,2011. 

(17) POST>EMPLX)YMENT BENEFITS 

The City of New Orleans is cuirendy responsible for all OPEB's related to die Office, other than diose 
described below. The benefits are paid directly by die Cit>'of New Orleans. These payments are included 
in die on-behalf payments made to the Office by the City of New Orleans. For die year ending December 
31,2011, die total on-behalf payments made were 54,880.915. 

Criminal Divisioii Odier Post Employment Benefits 

Criminal Plan Description: 

The Orleans Parish Sheriffs life insurance benefits are provided to employees upon actual retirement 

The employer pays 100% of the cost of retiree life insurance based on blended rates. Employees are 
covered by a retirement system whose retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 30 
years of service at any ^ e or. age 55 and 15 years of service. See the section below entided "Expected 
Time of Commencement of Benefits" for die assumption as to time of actual rctireinent. 

Contribution Rates: 

Employees do not contribute to their post employment beoiefits costs until they become retirees and begin 
receiving those benefits^ The plan provisions and contribution rates are contained in the official plan. 
documents. 

Fund Policy: 

Until 2010, the Orleans Parish Sheriff recognized the cost of providing post-employment life, insurance 
benefrts (the Orleans Parish Sheriffs portion ofthe retiree life insurance benefit prenuums) as an expense 
when the benefit premiums were due and dius financed the cost ofthe post-employment benefits on a pay-
as-you-go basis. In 2011, the Office's portion of life insurance fimding cost fbr retired employees totaled 
$19,288, 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBERS!. 2011 

(17) POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued^ 

Crimmal Division Qdier Post Employment Benefits (continued^ 

Annual Required Contribution: 

The Orleans Parish Shaifrs Annual Reqmred Contribmion (ARC) is an amount actuarially determined in 
accordance widi GASB Codification. The ARC is die sum of die Normal Cost plus tiie contribution to 
amoitibre die Unfunded Actuarial Accmed LiGLbilit>' (UAAL). A level dollar, open amortization period of 30 
years has been used for the post-employment benefits. The actuarially computed ARC is as follows: 

Life 
Insurance 

Normal Cost $ 25,728 
30-year UAL amortization amount 41,738 
Annual required contribution (ARC) S 67,466 

Net Post-employment Benefit Obligation: 

The table below shows die Orleans Parish Sheriffs Net Odier Post-emplo>ment Benefit (OPEB) 
Obligation for fiscal year ending December 31,2011: 

Life Insurance 
Beginmng Net OPEB Obligation 1/1/2011 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 
ARC Adjustment 
OPEB Cost 
Contribution 
Current year retiree premium 
caiange in Net OPEB Obligation 

Ending Net OPEB Obligation U.'S 1/2011 

The follo^ '̂ing table shows the Orieans Parish Sheriffs annual post employment benefits (PEB) cost. 
percentage of tiie cost contributed, and die net unfimded post employment benefits (PEB) liability for last 
year. 

Fiscal Year Ended 

$ 45,583 

67,466 
i;823 

(2,636) 
66,653 

(19.288) 
47,365 

$ 92.948 

Annual 
OPEB Cost 

Percentage of 
Annual Cost 
Contributed 

Ket OPEB 
Obligation 

December 31.2011 $66,653 28.94% $92,948 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF^S OFFICE 
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DECEMBER 31. 2011 

(17) POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

Criminal Division Other Post Employment Benefits fcontinued) 

Funded Status and Funding Progress: 

In the fiscal year ending December 31,2011, the Orieans Parish Sheriff made no contributions to its post 
employment benefits plan. The plan is not funde4 has no assets, and hence has a fimded ratio of zero. 
Based on the January 1,2010 actuarial valuation, die most recent valuation, the Actuarial Accmed Liability 
(AAL) at the end of die year December 31, 2011 was $751,065, which is defined as that portion, as 
determined by a particular actuarial cost method (the Orleans Parish Sheriff uses die Projected Unit Credit 
Cost Method), of die actuarial present value of post employment plan benefits and expenses which is not 
provided by normal cost 

2011 
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) S 751.065 
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets 

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) S. 751,065 

Funded Ratio (Actuarial Valuation Asset&'AAL) 0% 

Covered Payroll (active plan members) $ 27^34,000 

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 2.7% 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future. The actuarial valuation for post employment benefits includes 
estimates and assumptions regarding (1) tumover rate; (2) retirement rate; (3) healdi care cost trend rate (4) 
mortality rate; (5) discount rate (investment return assumption); and (6) die period to which die costs apply 
(past, current, or future years of service by employees). Actuarially determined amounts are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the 
fumre. 

The actuarial calculations are based on die types of benefits provided under the terms of die substantive 
plan (the plan as understood by tiie Orleans Parish Sheriff and its employee plan members) at die tune of 
die valuation and on die pattem of sharing costs between die Orieans Parish Sheriff and its plan members to 
tiiat point The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitiy incorporate die 
potential effects of legal or conttactual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharmg between die 
Orleans P^sh Sheriff and plan members in die future. Consistent widi die long-term perspective of 
actuarial calculations, the acmarial mediods and assumptions used mclude techniques diat are designed to 
reduce short-term volatility in acmarial liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. 
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PECEMBER3L20U 

(17) POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS fcontinuedl 

Qiminal Division Other Post Employment Benefits (continued) 

Actuarial Cost Mediod: 

The ARC is determmed using the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method. The en^loyer portion ofthe cost for 
retiree life insimmce in each fiiture year is detennined by projecting the cunent cc^t levels using the 
healthcare cost trend rete-and discounting this projected amount to the valuation date using the other 
described pratinent actuarial assumptions, including the investment retum assumption (discount rate), 
mortality and turnover. 

Actuarid Value of Plan Assets: 

There are not any plan assets. It is anticipated diat in future valuations, should fimding take place, a 
smoothed market value consistent with Actuarial Standards Board ASOP 6. as provided in paragr^h 
numbCT 125 of GASB Codification wlD be used. 

Turnover Rate: 

An age-related tumover scale based on actual experience has been used. The rates, when applied to the 
active employee census, produce an smnual turnover of approximately 10%. The rates for each age are 
below: 

Age Percent Tumover 
20.0% 
12.0% 
8.0% 
6.0% 

Post Employment Benefit Plan Eligibility Requirements: 

Historically, employees have typically entered D.R.O;P. afler age 55 and 18 years of service. We have 
dierefore assumed diat emplo>'ees retire du:ee years after diat historical DJLO.P. entry age as just 
described. The three years is to accommodate die DiLO.P. period. Life insurance benefits are provided lo 
employees upon acnial r«irement. Entitiement to benefits continue through Medicare to death. 

Investment Return Assumption (Discount Rate): 

GASB Statement 45 states that die investment retum assumption should be die estiniated long-term 
investment yield on die investments that are expected to be used to finance die payment of benefits (that is, 
for a plan which is fimded). Based on ttie assumption diat die ARC will not be funded, a 4% aimual 
investment retum has been used in diis valuation. 

18-
26 • 
4 1 -
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERTFF»S OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

(17) POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued^ 

Criminal Division Odier Post Employment Benefits (continued^ 

Health Care Cost Trend Rate: 

The expected rate of racrease in medical cost is based on projections performed by the Office of the 
Actuary at the Craters for Medicare & Medicaid Services as published in National Health Care 
Expenditures Projections: 2003 to 2013, Table 3: National Healdi Expenditures, Aggregate and per Capita 
Amounts, Percent Distribution and Average Annual Percent Change by Source of Funds: Selected Calendar 
Years 1990-2013, released in January, 2004 by the Health Care Financing Adminislration 
(www.cms.hhs.gov). "State and Local" rates for 2008 tiirough 2013 fi-om tids report were used, witii rates 
beyond 2013 graduated down to an ultimate annual rate of 5.0% for 2016 and later. 

Mortality Rate: 

The 1994 Group Annuity Reserving (94GAR) table, projected to 2002, based on a fixed blend of 50% of 
the unloaded male mortality rate and 50% of the unloaded female mortality rates, was used. This is a 
published mortality table which was designed to be used in determining die value of accrued benefits in 
defined benefit pension plans. 

Mediod of Determining Value of Benefits: 

The "value of benefits" has been assumed to be the portion ofthe premium afler retirement date expected to 
be paid by the etnployer for each retiree and has been used as the basis for calculating die actuarial presail 
value of OPEB benefits to be paid. Life insurance coverage in the amount of $10,000 is continued to 
retirees and flie blended rate fbr active employees and retirees is $0.40 per monfli per $1,000 of insurance. 
The employer pays 100% of die "cost" of life insurance after retirement for die retiree, but it is based on die 
blended active/retired rate and tiierc is dius an implied subsidy. Since die GASB Codification requires the 
use of "unblended" rates, the 94GAR mortality table described below is used to "unblend" the rates so as to 
reproduce die composite blended rate overall as die rate structure to calculate the actuarial valuation results 
for life insurance. 

Inflation Rate: 

Included in bodi die Investment Retum Assumption and die Healthcare Cost Tr^d rates above is an 
implicit inflation assumption of 2.50% annually. 

Projected Salary Increases; 

This assumption is not applicable since nerdier the benefit structure nor the valuation metiiodology faivolves 
salary. 

Post-retirement Benefit Increases: 

The plan benefit provisions in efiect for retirees as of die valuation date have been used and it has been 
assumed fi>r valuation purposes tiiat tiiere will not be any changes in die future. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTimJED) 

DECEMBER 31. 2011 

(17) POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS fcontinuedl 

Criminal Division Other Post Employment Benefits (continued) 

Below is a summary of OPEB cost and contributions for the last three fiscal calendar years. 

OPEB Costs and Contributions 

December 31, December 31, December 31, 
2009 2010 2011 

OPEB Cost 64.871 $ 66.653 

Contribution 
Retiree premium 

Total contribution and premium 

Change in net OPEB obligation S 

% of contribution to cost 
% of contrikition plus preimum to cost 

Civil Division Other Post Emolovment Benefits 

-

-

- $ 

0.00% 
0.00% 

(19.288) 
(19,288) 

45.583 $ 

0.00% 
29.73% 

(19.288) 
(19^88) 

47,365 

0.00% 
28.94% 

Civil Plan Description: 

TTie Orleans Paish Sheriff-Civil Division's medical, dental and life insurance benefits are provided to 
employees upon actual iretirement. 

The employer pays 100% of die mwilical coverage for die retiree (not dependents). Emplo>'ees are covered 
by a retirement system whose retffement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entiy) provisions are as follows: 30 years of 
service at any age or, age 55 and 15 years of service. 

Dental insurance coverage is provided to retirees. The employer pays 100% of the cost of die dental 
insurance for tiie retirees but not for dependents. We have used the unblended rates provided. All of die 
assumptions used for die valiwiion of die medical benefits have been used for denial insurance except for 
die trend assumption; zero trend was used for dental insurance. 

Life insurance coverage is continued to retirees by election and the blended rate for active employees and 
retirees is $0,348 per $1,(KI0 of insurance. The employer pays 100% of die cost of life insurance afler 
retirement for die retiree, but it is based on die blended active/retired rate and diere is tiius an in^lied 
subsidy. Since GASB C^odification requires die use of "unblended" rates, we have used die 94GAR 
mortality teble described above to "unblend" die rates so as to reproduce die composite blended rate overall 
as die rate structure lo calculate the actuarial valuation results flir life insurance. Insurance coverage 
amounts are reduced to 75% of die original amount at age 65 aod to 50% of die original amount at age 70. 
All ofthe assumptions used for die valuation of die medical benefits have been used except for the trend 
assumption; zero trend was used for life insurance. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31.2011 

(IT) POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

Civil Division Qtiier Post Emplmment Benefits fcontiriuefl̂  

Contribution Rates: 

Employees do not contribute to then- post employment benefits costs until they become retirees and begin 
receiving those benefits. The plan provisions and contribution rates are contained in die official plan 
documents. 

Fund Policy^ 

In die fiscal years prior to July 1.2009, die Orleans Parish Sheriff-Civil Division recognized the cost of 
providing post-employment medical, dental and life insurance benefits (the Orleans Parish Sheriff-Civil 
Division's portion ofthe retiree medical and life insurance benefit premiums) as an expense when die 
benefit premiums were due and thus fmanced the cost ofthe post-employment benefits on a pay-as-you-go 
basis. In 2011, die OfQce's portion of healdi care and life insurance fimding cost for retired employees 
tot£dedS81.!(^. 

Annual Required Contribution: 

The Orleans Parish Sheriff-Civil Division's Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is an amount actuarially 
determined in accordance widi GASB Codification. Tlie ARC is die sum of die Normal Ctost plus die 
contribution to amortize die Unfimded Actuarial Accmed Liability (UAAL). A level dollar, open 
amortization period of 30 years (die maximum anwrtization period allowed by GASB Codification) has 
been used for the post-employment benefits. The actuarially computed ARC is as follows: 

2011 
Normal Cost $ 135.050 
30-year UAL arnorttzation amount 198.404 

Annual reqiured contribution (AR(^ $ 333^454 

Net Post-employment Benefit Obligation: 

The table below shows die Orleans Parish Sheriff-Civil Division's Net Odier Post Employment Benefit 
(OPEB) Obligation fbr fisral year ending December 31,2011: 

2011 
Beginning Net OPEB Obligation 1/1/̂ 011 $ 574^4 

Annual required contribution 333.454 
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 22,970 
ARC Adjustment (33.209) 
OPEB Cost 323,215 
Contribution 
Cmrent year retkce premium (81,102) 

Change in Net OPEB Obligation 242,113 
Ending Net OPEB ObUgation l2/'31/2011 $ 816,357 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCL\L STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31. 2011 

(17) POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS reonfinued^ 

CivD Division Odier Post EmT3lo\ment Benefits fcontinued) 

The followmg table shows die Oleans Parish Sheriff-Ci\'il Division's annual post employment benefits 
(PEB) cost, percentage of die cost contributed, and the net unfimded post employment benefits (PEB) 
liability: 

Percentage of 
Annual OPEB Annual Cost Net OPEB 

Fiscal Year Ended C^st Contributed Obligation 

December 31,2011 $323,215 25.09% . $816,357 

Funded Status and Fimding Progress: 

In 2011, die Orleans Parish SherifT-Civll Division made no contributions to its post ttnployment benefits 
plan. The plan is not funded at all, has no assets, and hence has a funded ratio of zero. Based on die 
January 1,2009 actuarial valuation, die most recent valuation, die Actuarial Accmed Liability (AAL) at die 
end ofthe year December 31, 2011 vras $3,567,999 which is defined as tiiat portion, as determined by a 
particular actuarial cost mediod (die Orleans Parish Sheriff-Civil Division uses die Projected Unit Credit 
Cost Mediod), ofthe actuarial present value of post employment plan benefits and expenses which is not 
provided by normal cost. 

December 
31,2011 

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 3,567,999 

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets 
Unfimded Act. Accmed Liability (UAAL) $ 3,567.999 

Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value Assets/AAL) 0^^ 

Covered Payroll (active plan members) S 4,403,000 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 81% 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 

Actuarial \'aluations involve estimates of die value of reported amounts and assumptions about die 
probability of events far into die fiiture. The actuarial valuation for post employment benefits includes 
estimates and assumptions regarding (1) tumover rate; (2) retirement rate; (3) healdi care cost trend rate; 
(4) mortality rate; (5) discount rate (mvestment retum assumption); and (6) die period to which die costs 
apply (past, current, or fiiture years of service by employees). Actuarially determined amowits are subject 
to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about 
the fiiture. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCLAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31. 2011 

(17) POST-EMPLOYMEVT BENEFITS fcontinued> 

Civil Division Other Post Employment Benefits (continuedV 

The actuarial calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of die substantive 
plan (the plan as understood by die Orieans Parish Sheriff-Civil Division and its employee plan members) 
at the time ofthe valuation and on the pattem of sharing costs between the Orleans Parish Sheriff-Civil 
Division and its plan members to that point. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes 
does not explicidy incorporate iJie potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattem 
of cost sharing between die Orleans Parish Sheriff-Civil Division and plan members in the fiiture. 
Consistent with die long-term perspective of actuarial calculations, the actuarial methods and assumptions 
used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial liabilities and the 
actuarial value of assets. 

Actuarial Cost Method: 

The ARC is detennined using tiie Projected Unit Credit Cost Mediod. The employer portion ofthe cost for 
retire medical care in each future year is determmed by projecting the current cost levels using the 
bealdicare cost trend rate and discpunttng diis projected amount to the valuation date using die other 
described pertinent actuarial assumptions, including the investment retum assumption (discount rate), 
mortality, and turnover. 

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets: 

There are not any plan assets. It is anticipated tfiat in future valuations, should funding take place, a 
smoothed market value consistent widi Actuarial Standards Board Actuarial Standards of Mctice Number 
6 (ASOP 6), d& provided m die GASB Codification. 

Turnover Rate: 

An age-related tumover scale based on actual experience has been used. The rates, when applied to the 
active employee census, produce a composite average annual tumover of approximately 5%. 

Post En^loyment Benefit Plan Eligibility Requirements: 

Historically, employees havie retired after age 5$ and 25 years of service or at 30 years of service, if sooner. 
We have therefore assumed diat employees retire diree years after that historical retirement age as just 
described. The three years is to accommodate tiie D , R 6 . P . period. Medical, dental and life Insurance 
benefits are provided to employees upon actual retirement Entitiement to benefits continue through 
Medicare to death. 

Investment Return Assumption (Discount Rale); 

GASB Codification states diat die investment return assumption should be die estimated long-term 
investment yield on die investments dial are expected to be used to finance die pa>ment of benefits. Since 
the ARC is not currentiy being funded and not expected to be funded in die near fiiture. we have p«formed 
this valuation using a 4% annual investment retum assumption. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFHCE 
NOTES TO FINAKCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTTKUED) 

nFCEMBER31.20n 

(17) POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS fcontinued> 

Civil Division Odier Post Employment Benefits (continued^ 

Heahh Care C:ost Trend Rate: 

The expected rate of increase in medical cost is based on projections paformed by the Office of die 
Actuary at the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services as published in National Healdi Care 
Expenditures Projections: 2003 to 2013, Table 3: National Health Expenditures, Aggregate and per C^ita 
Amounts. Percent Dis^bution and Average Annual Percent Change by Source of Funds: Selected Calendar 
Years 1990-2013, released in January. 2004 by the Healdi Care Financmg Adminisd-ation 
(www.cms.hhs.gov). "State and Local" rates for 2010 dirough 2013 from this report were used, with rates 
beyond 2013 graduated down to an ultimate annual rate of 5.0% for 2016 and later. 

Mortality Rate: 

The 1994 Groiqi Armuity Reserving (94GAR) table, projected to 2002, based on a fixed blend of 50% of 
die unloaded male mortality rate and 50% ofthe unloaded female mortality rates, was used, this is a 
published mortality table which was designed to be used in determining die value of accrued benefits in 
defmed benefit pension plans. Since the GASB Codification requires die use of "unblended" rates, die 
94(3AR mortality table described above is used to "unblend" the rates so as to reproduce die composite 
blended rate overall as the rate stmcture to calculate die actuarial valuation results for life insurance. 

Method of Determining Value of Benefits: 

The "value of benefits" has been as^imed to be the portion ofthe prenuum after retirement date expected to 
be paid by die employer for each retiree and has been used as the basis for calculating die actuarial present 
value of OPEB benefits to be paid. The employer pays 100% of die cost ofthe medical and dental benefits 
for the retiree only (not dependents). The medical rales provided are "blended" rates for active and retired 
before Medicare eligibility. We have therefore estimated die "unblended" rates as required \>y GASB 
Codification for valuation purposes to be 130% of die blended rates prior to Medicare eligibility. 

Inflation Rate: 

Included in both the Investment Retum Assumption and the Healthcare Cost Trend rates above is an 
implicit inflation assumption of 2.50% annually. 

Projected Salary Increases: 

This assumption is not applicable since neidier the benefit structure nor the valuation methodology involves 
salary. 

Post-retirement Benefit Increases: 

The plan benefit provisions in effect for retirees as of the valuation date have been used and it has been 
assumed for valuation purposes that there will not be any changes in the future. 
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ORLEANS P.\RISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C0NTINL1ED) 

DECEMBER 31.2011 

(17) PQST^EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS fcontinuedl 

Civil Division Odier Post Employment Benefits (continuedl 

Below is a summary of OPEB cost and contributions for the last tiuiee fiscal calendar years. 

OPEB Costs and Contributions 

OPEBC:ost 

Contribution 
Retiree premium 

Toml contributioii and premium 

Change in net OPEB obligation 

% of contribution to cost 
% of contribution plus premium to cost 

$ 

$ ^ 

December 31, 
2009 

462,446 

_, 
(121,653) 
(121,653) 

340,793 

0.00% 
26.31% 

$ 

$ 

December 31, 
2010 

314.553 

_ 

(81,102) 
(81,102) 

233,451 

0.00% 
25.78% 

$ 

m 

December 31, 
2011 

323,215 

(81,102) 
(81.102) 

242,113 

0.00% 
25.09% 

( m SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The OIG issued a memorandum to FEMA dated May 30,2012 relating to a current audit of S178 million of 
FEMA public assistance funds awarded to the Office since Hurricane Katrina, which occurred in August 
2005. The memorandum is questioning certain reimbursements for work dial was related to or funded fi^om 
projects related to properties tiiat dw Office may not own. The memorandum provides for die Office and 
the City of New Orleans (City) to reach a legally binding agreement regarding owneî ship and legal 
r^ponsibility for these properties within six montiis ofthe date of this memorandum. The Office md die 
City have been m discussions and arc in process of completing the legally binding agreement relating to die 
ownership of die properties and die Office fiilly expects die issue to be resolved widiin die six mondi 
period. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INrORMATION OTHER THAN 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



Schedule "A-I" 

ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IM FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3L 2011 

R g ^ N U E S : 
Custody of prisoners: 

City of New Orieans charges 
Scale of Louisiana Department of Correcdons charges 
Federal charges 
Odier charges 

Civil fees and commissions 
Security services 
On-behalf payments 
Other income 
State supplemental pay 
Federal and state grants 

Total revenues 

Variance With 
Budgeted Amounts 

Original 

S 21,987.975 S 
11,100,000 
1,642^00 

722,000 
8,610.000 
1.721,000 
5,000,000 
4,571,000 
3.228.000 

72.055,000 

Final 

24,035,000 S 
9,895.000 

950.000 
674.000 

7,150.000 
1,721.000 
5,000.000 
3.775.000 
3,067.000 

76.I92.G00 

Actual 
Amounts 

23.762,489 
9,866,429 

920.066 
667,178 

7,338^42 
1,634.068 
4,880.915 
3,999,411 
3.074.997 

66.62U12 

Find Budget -
Ovw (Under) 

S (272,511) 
(28.571) 
(29,934)' 
(6.822) 

188.542 
C86.932) 

(119,085) 
224.411 

7.997 
(9^70.688) 

130,637,475 132,459.000 122,765,407 (9.693.593) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Central services 
Court services 
Security services 
Administrative services 
Records and booking 
Inmate sendees 
Interest 
Debtretiiemeret 
Grants and special programs 
Plant and msdntenance and capital outlays 

5.840,721 
3.772,323 

20,087,431 
8.214,620 
3,521,998 

11.779,026 
50,000 

3,986,000 
1,426.365 

85,102,816 

5.611,083 
4,036.139 

20,068.535 
9.752.296 
4,499.283 

11.575,474 
100.195 

3,986.000 
1,804,777 

82,257,873 

5.007.109 
3.718.916 

21,430.955 
9,272,313 
4.184,945 

11,437,360 
100.107 

3.986,000 
1,169.011 

69,425.104 

(603,974) 
(317.223) 
U62,420 
(479,983) 
(314,338) 
(138,114) 

(88) 
-

(635.766) 
(12,832.769) 

Total expenditures 

Deficiency of re\'enues over ocpcndinircs 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (VSZS): 

Proceeds from bonds 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources 

Net change in fund balance 

FUND B A L A N C F A BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES. ENDING 

U3.78U00 143,691.655 129,731.820 (13.959.835) 

(13.143.825) (n>232.655) (6:966.413) 4,266.242 

9,650.000 
3,986,000 

636.000 

9.6SO.000 4,622.000 

(3,493.825) (6,610.655) 

4.198,078 3.968:290 

3,986,000 
1.500.799 

5.486J99 

(1,479.614), 

3,968J90 

864.799 

864,799 

5.131,041 

m2si s imzM^ s x m , m s ^-1^1041 

See Auditor's Report. 
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Schedule "A-2' 

ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OFHCE 
SCHEDULE OF REVENL*ES, EXPENDfrURES. AND CRINGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUD(3ET AND ACTUAL - DEBT SERVICE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3!. 2011 

REVENUES: 
Investment income 
Ad valoifCTi tax revenue 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES; 
Debt retirement 
Interest payments 
Miscellaneous 

Total.expenditurc^ 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

Net change in Ilmd balance 

FUND BALANCES. BEGINNING 

ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE 

Less Go Zone restricted fiiture payipcnts 

FUND BALANCES. ENDING 

Variance With 
Budgeted 

Origuial 

S 275.000 
7.000.000 

7.275.000 

4,030,000 
1,538.410 

500 

5,568.910 

1,706,090 

1,706,0^ 

24.775362 

26,481.452 

(17,256.122) 

$ 9.225.330 

Amounts 

S 

— 

— 

— 

J . 

Final 

160,000 
7,035.000 

7.195.000 

10,180.000 
1,437,618 

11,617,618 

(4,422.618) 

(4,422,618) 

24,877,153 

20.454.535 

(17,256,122) 

3^1^413 

Actual 
Amounts 

$ 168.226 
7.047.750 

7.215.976 

10,180,000 
1.437,618 

11,617,618 

(4.401.642) 

(4.401.642) 

24.877.153 

20,475.511 

(17^6,122) 

$ 3^19.389 

Fbal Budget-
Ovcr(UndCT) 

S 8,226 
12.750 

20,976 

-

20,976 

20,976 

_ 

20,976 

„ 

S 20.976 

See Auditor's Report 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OFHCE 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31.2011 

Schedule "B-r 

ASSETS: 
Total assets 

Scholarship 
Fund 

Eldra-ly Victims 
Fund 

s = 

Benevolent 
Fund Total 

^ & 

LIABILITIES: 
Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCES: 
Total ^ d balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances ^ L 

See Auditor^s Report 
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Schedule "B.2" 

ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OFFICE 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AKD CHANGES IN fUHD BALANCES 

KON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.501 

REVENUES: 
Investment income 
Other income 

Total revenues 

B?(p^rfP)(TWESi 
Miscellaneous 

Total ©cpenditures 

Scholarship 
Fund 

$ 

. 

Elderly Victims 
Fund 

$ 1,013 
21.480 

22.493 

89.120 

89.120 

Benevolent 
Fund 

$ 2 $ 

2 

3.427 

3.427 

Total 

1,015 
21,480 

22,495 

90.547 

90.547 

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (66.627) (1.425) (68,052) 

TRANSFERS: 
Transfers out (1K645) (701.570) (2.158) (715.373) 

FUND BALANCES. BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES. ENDING 

11,645 768,197 3.583 783.425 

See Auditor's Report. 
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Schedule "B-3' 

ORtEAJS^ PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31.2011 

ASSETS 
Total Non-Major 

Community Enterprise 
Commissary Service Funds Funds 

CL-RRENT ASSETS: 
Interftmd receivable S 59.955 S 1.358 $ 61.313 

Total current assets 59.955 3.358 61.313 

NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS: 
Unrestricted 59.955 y S S 61313 

Total net assets S m H 1 _ U ^ ^ ^ -̂̂ ^^ 

See Auditor's Report. 
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Scbedule"B-4' 

ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OFBCE 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FLINDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2011 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Sales 

Less: cost of goods sold 

Gross profit 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Personnel costs 

Tota] operating expenses 

Operating income 

TRANSFERS: 

Transfers out; 

Change in net assets 

NET ASSETS. BEGINXTNG 

NET ASSETS. ENDING 

Cdmmissary 

$ 682,986 
(2.958) 

680,028 

680,028 

44.037 

44,037 

635,991 

(635,991) 

59,955 

? 59.955 

C-ommunity 
Service Imds 

$ 
• 

1.358 

$ i:358 

Total Non-Major 
Enterprise 

Funds 

$ 

s. 

682.986 
(2.958) 

680.028 

680.028 

44.037 

44.037 

635,991 

(635.991) 

61.313 

6l .3n 

See Auditor's Report 
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Schedule "B-S" 

OlRtEANS PARISH SHERDPFS OFFICE 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED PECEMBER31.20I1 

CASH FI OWS FROM OPERATING ACnVTlTCS: 
Cash received from inmates ond customers 
Cash paid to suppliers 
Cash paid to employees 

Net cash flows provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAFrTALFINAyQNG ACnVITlES; 
Cash paid to o*Jier funds 

Net c a ^ Hows used in noncapital fiimncing octivines 

UtA ch£m^ in c ^ and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, be^nning 

Cash and cash equivalents, ending 

RECONCILUTION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET 
C A S E J ^ Q V T P E P g Y Q y f e R ^ T I N g A C T I v m K S ; 
Operating income 

Net cash provided by operating at^vities 

Commissary 

$ 6X2,986 $ 
C2.958) 

M4.037) 

635.991 

(635,991) 

(635,991) 

Community 
Service 
Fund 

Total Non-Nlaior 
Entcrpiises 

Funds 

- $ 682.986 
a.958) 

(44.037) 

635.991 

(635.991) 

(635.991) 

S 

$ 

J 

- $ 

635,991 $ 

635.991 $ 

- $ 

- $ 

- S 

-

635,991 

635.991 

Sec Audttor*s Report. 
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ScheduIe"B-6' 

ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

AGENa'FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31.2011 

Criminal Property Cash Bonds 
Fines Justice Room andFines Civil Total Agency* 

ASSETS: 
Cash 
Other receivables 
Interfund receivable 
Deposits 

Total assets 

LIABILITIE?: 
Due to inmates and others 
Interfund payable 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

S 

s 

3.461 

3.461 

2.156 
1305 

3.461 

-

S 

$ 

100 

100 

100 

100 

-

s 

»- . 

$_ 

271.076 
21.682 
13.195 
40,000 

345.953 

345.953 

345.953 

-

S 

$ _ 

54.105 

54,105 

7.649 
46,456 

54J05 

-

S 

«— 

L 

3,608,799 

3.608.799 

2,840,256 
768.543 

3.608.799 

-

S 

$ _ 

3.937,541 
21,682 
13,195 
40,000 

4,012.418 

3.196,014 
836.404 

4,012,418 

-

Sec Auditor's Report 
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Schedule"C-r 

ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OFRCE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES - EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEARS KMDED DECEMBER 31.2011.2010. AND 2009 

2011 2010 2009 
Functions/Programs 
Govemmental activities: 
Custody of inmates: 

Personnel 
Contractual 
Materials and supplies 
Depreciation 

Total custody of inmates 
Interest on long-term debt 

S 45,908.348 S 
11.509,948 
7.187.250 
4.197.215 

68,802,761 
1.841.274 

46.961.363 $ 
11,123,414 
9.100,055 
5.040.030 

72.224,862 
2.121.798 

38,638,385 
8,227,010 
8,677,995 
4,962,694 

60,506,084 
1,968,705 

Total governmental activities & isMim I KmM 

See Auditor's Report. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OFFICE 
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS 

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments plus accrued interest 
Inteisovemmental receivables 
Interfimd receivables 
Other receivables 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventory 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable 
InteiMd payables 
Deferred revenue 
Accrued annual and sick leave 

Total liabilities 

FTOPBAWHCgS: 
Nonspendable amounts: 

Not in spendable form 
Restricted 
Unassigned 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fimd balances 

- GENERAL FUND 
nFCEMBER3L 201L 2010. AND 2009 

S 

L -

$ 

t^ 

2011 

14,196,483 . 
-

19,566,802 
1,634,336 

916,627 
42,450 

864 J37 

HiUiim 

27,188,122 
6,250,329 
1,279,308 

15.000 

34.732,759 

907.187 
508,834 

1,072,655 

2,488.676 

37.221435 

2010 

S 

$ .. 

$ 

s 

7,941,093 S 
999.508 

12,269,183 
868.754 

1,218,862 
37,438 

907.472 

24.24MiP i 

10,317.327 ; 
6,751,828 
3,189,865 

15.000 

20.274.020 

944.910 
292.935 

2.730,445 

3,968.290 

24>242,310 , 

Schedule "C-2" 

2009 

J 8,726,774 
-

9.763.611 
466,852 
929,967 

32,174 
1.034.968 

S..„- 20J?54346 

5 9.696,688 
8,248.281 
2.497.265 

15.000 

20.457^34 

1.067.142 
733.179 

(1,303^09) 

497,112 

B 20.954.346 
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Schedule " € - 3 -

ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFFS OFHCE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVE^aJES•, EXPENDrrURES AKD CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GENERAL FUND 

FORTHEYEARS ENDEDDECEMBER31.201L20IO. AND2O09 

2011 2010 2009 
REVENUES: 
Custody of inmalcs: 

City of New Oikens charges 
State of Louisiana Departmfim of Correcdcm charges 
Federal charges 
OthachaiB^ 

Civil fees and commissions 
Security services 
Investtnent income 
On-behalf payments 
Other income 
State supptemental pay 
Federal grants 
Resdtutioii/admiaistratidn 
Release processing fees 

Total levenues 

EXPENPrrURES: 
Central services 
Court services 
SecuriTy services 
Adnunistradve services 
Records and booking 
Inmate services 
Grants and spcdaL programs 
Plant and ntaintcnazm 
Miscellaneaus 
Debt reliremerU 
Interest paymaits 
Capital outlavs 

Total expcndiiurcs 

Dcficienc)' of revenue over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OiSESV INCLUDING TRANSFERS: 
Proceeds from notes 
Proiaeds from sole of assets 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources, inchiding tmnsfers 

Net changes in fimd balances 

FUND BALANCES. BECINNINC 

NIERGER OF CIVBL SHERIFF EQUITY AT MAY 2,2010 

FUND BALANCES. EXPnVG 

S 23.762,489 $ 
9,866.429 

920.056 
667,178 

7,338.542 
1.634,068 

6.432 
4.880.915 
2,823.154 
3.074.997 

66,621.312 
638.839 
530.986 

122,765.407 

5.007.109 
3,718.916 

21.430.955 
9,272,313 
4,184.945 

11.437.360 
1.169.011 
5,383.908 

-
3.986,000 

100.107 
64,041.196 

129.731.820 

(6,966,413) 

3.986,000 

-
1,500.799 

• . 

5.486.799 

(1.479.614) 

3.968.290 

. 

J 2,4SS.^76 J 

24,255.624 $ 
10.263.648 

1.792.753 
742,727 

4,935.785 
1.181,685 

18,354 
4,858,501 
2.834.369 
^937,820 

3U11.957 
743,448 
548.867 

S6.425.S38 

5.686,776 
3.896.512 

22,154.090 
8.672.191 
4,200.480 

12;!50.225 
1,027,866 
7.078,125 

3.820 
-

50,105 
27.098.477 

92J 18,667 

(5.693,129) 

3,986.000 

-
3,978,842 

^442.838) 

5.522.004. 

(171,125) 

497,112 

3.642J03 

2.268.223 !_ 

26.736.149 
6,910,823 
1.968.630 

166,777 

* 
. 

25.386 
5J43.490 
2.904.458 
2,541,894 

12.202,798 
476.558 
401.642 

59.678.605 

3,284.725 
.3.974,851 
19.026,874 
2,983,205 
6,296,249 

11.870.684 
321.724 

9,917,568 
794 

. 
-

7.73U26 

65.408,000 

(5.729395) 

. 
3.600 

1.809.471 
. 

1.SIX07I 

(3.916,324) 

4,413.436 

. 

jmiT^ 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFHCE 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31.201I 

Funding Agencies/ 
Prosraro TiUe 

CS. Depflrtmtntiif JostiK 

Pass-Thiough Awardg 

OfEice of Justico Pragrams. Bureau of lu^ce Assistance 
Passed through Lduisiarm Cmrcnissinn cm LawEnflorcenient 
and AdministralJon of Crimtnal iustica 

Edwont Byrne Memorial Justice Formula Gmnt - Crime Activity Patrol 
Edtt-ard Byme Memorial Justice Formula Grant - Crime Activii>- Patrol 
Edward Byrne MemorlBl Justice Formula Grant - teteiuive Incarceration 

Passed ihrcmgh Ciiy of New Orleans 
Edword Byme Memorial Jusdce Amiaionce Grant 

Passod thrbush New Orleans Police and Justice Foundation 
Edward By?nc Memorial Justice Assfsmnce Grant 

Total Justice Assistance Grant 0\aicr 

OfUce of Justice Prosranu. OfHce of Juvenile Jus:tce and 
Ddrnqueney Prevemion 
Passed throt:^ Louisiana Commission on Law EnftHcement 
and AdnunistraU'on of Criminal Justice 

Juvenile Accountabil:^ Incenthe Blade Gnmts (JAIBG) 
Curfew C«it« 
Curfew Center 

Total Juvenile Justice and Deliqueni^; Peventiwi 

Twa! U.S. Departmem of Justice 

|4St-Pppartment of Homtland Secnrllv 

Ptta-TJirHWsh.Avi^r45; 

Louisiana OfHce of Homeland Security and Emergeiicy Preparedness . 
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 
lawEnforcement Terrorism Prevention Program 

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Securi^ 

Pm-Thro»Eh Awards: 

State of Louisiana, Depanment of Health and Hospicals 
Office of Public Health 

HIV Preyemion Activities - Heahh Dt̂ jartmenJ Based 

Total y.S. Departmenl of Health and Human Services 

Total Federal Awards 

(M) - Rcpresaits a "Maior* proftjnm under OMB Circular A-133 

Notes to the Schedule of EiDcnditnra of Fedgral Awardi 

Note] 

Federal 
CFDA 

NumtKr 
Grant 

Number 
Disbursements/ 
Expenditures 

]«.738 
16.738 
16.738 

16.738 

16.738 

BO8-9-O03 
B10-9-003 
B09-9-0W 

20lO-DJ.BX.I664 

Y07-8-00S 

S 28,841 
14.614 
69.516 

3.560 

1.359 
117,890 

I6i23 
16.523 

97.036 
97.067 

93.943 

A08-8-023 
A09-8-022 

FEMA 
2008.GE-T8-OOI3 

33.3S3 
13,091 

46,454 • 

164344 

63^77.337 (M) 
6 0 ^ 9 

326:104717 

i 

75,C58 

75,058 

63.677288 

This schedute of ocpendirurcs of federal awards incl'odes ihe federal grant acti»-jty ofthe Orleans Parish Sheriffs Office and is picsented on 
the accmal basis of accounting. The information in this schedule Is presented in occordanM whh (he requirements of OMB Circular A-133. 
Audits of States. Local Governments, and Kon-Pro6t Organizations. Tncreforo. some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from 
anxiuntfi oresented a. or used in Dreoaration ot the basic HnsnciaE statemEnts. 
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REPORT ON ESTTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON 
AN AUDTT OF FINANCUL STATEMENTS PERFORMED ENf 

ACCORDANCE WTIH GOVERNMEST AUDITmG STANDARDS 

The Honorable Marlin N, Gusman 
Orleans Parish Sheriffs Office: 

We have audited the fmancial statements ofthe govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fimd, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation ofthe Orleans Parish Sheriffs Office (*e 
Office) as of and for die year ended December 31, 2011, which collectively comprise the Office's basic 
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 28,2012. We conducted our audit in 
accordance mth auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and die standards 
applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General ofthe United States. 

Internal Control 0\'er Financial Reporting 

Management ofthe OfRce is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control over 
financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Office's intemal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the fmancial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Office's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness ofthe Office's internal control over fmancial reporting. 

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and coirect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies^ in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibihty that a material misstatement 
ofthe entity's financial statements ̂ yill not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in intemal control that 
might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in intemal control over financial reporting that wc consider to be material weaknesses, as 
defmed above. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether die Office's financial statements are &ee of 
material misstatenient, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, rejgulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of fmancial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on comphance with those 
provisions nas not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

•Riis report is mtended solely for the information and use ofthe Office, the Office's management; federal, 
state and city awarding agencies; and the Louisiana Le^slative Auditor and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised 
Statute 24:513, ̂ is report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

New Orleans, Louisiana: 
June 28,2012 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULI) HAVE A DmECT AND 
MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

The Honorable Mariin N. Gusman 
Orleans Parish Sheriffs Office: 

Compliance 

We have audited the Orleans Parish Sheriffs Office's (the Office) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-J33 Compliance Sig>plememthai could have a 
direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2011. 
The Office's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of 
the OfiRce*s management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Office's compliance based 
on our audit 

Wc conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contaijied in Government Auditing 
Standards, issuer! by the Comptroller General ofthe United Stales; and OMB Circular A-133. Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements refeired to above that could have a direct and material e^ect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
Office's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessao' in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
Our audit does not provide a legal detennination ofthe Ofiflce's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the Office complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
December 31,2011. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management ofthe Office is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control over 
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Office's internal control over 
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and materia] effect on a major federal program to 
detennine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test 
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and report on intennal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-135, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on die effectiveness of the Office's internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Office's intemal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance docs not allow management or employees, in the normal coin^ of perfonning dieir assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis, A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify alt deficiencies in intemal control over 
compliance ^ t might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or materia] weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in int^nal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for die infonnation and use of the Office, the Office's management; federal, 
state and city awarding agencies; and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised 
Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document 

New Orleans, Louisiana 
June 28,2012 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs 

Yearended December 31,2011 

(1) Smtio^ty of Auditors! Rcsufe 

(a) The type of report issued on the basic financial statements: unqualified opinion 

(b) Significant deficiencies in intemal control were disclosed by the audit of the financial 
statements: goi Material weaknesses: no 

(c) Noncompliance which is material to the fmancial statements: no 

(d) Significant deficiencies in internal control over major program: no; Material weaknesses: QO 

(e) The type of report issued on compliance for major program: unQualified opinion 

(f) Any audit findings which are required to be reported under Section 510(a) of OMB Circular 
A-i33:Ba 

(g) Major programs: 

United States Department of Homeland Security - Disasta* Grants 
• CFDA No. 97.036 Public Assistance 

(h) Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B progranis: $1,910319 

(i) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under Section 530 of OMB Circular A-133: i ^ 

(2) Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in accordance with Govemment Auditing 
Standards: none 

(3) Findings and Questioned Costs relating to Federal Awards: none 
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ORLEANS PARISH SHERIFF'S OFHCE 
New Orieans, Lonisiana 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Year ended December 31,2011 

SECTION I INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE MATERUL TO THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 
No Findings 

SECTION n INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE MATERIAL TO FEDERAL 
AWARDS 
No Findings 

SECTION IE MANAGEMENT LETTER 

No Findings 
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